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In 2022 (from January 1,  2022 to December 31, 2022),  the Company shall 
be included in the preparation of the consolidated f inancial statements of 
affil iated companies and . According to International Accounting Standards No. 
10, the companies that  should be included in the preparation of the parent -
subsidiary consolidated financial statements are the same, and the relevant 
information that should be disclosed in the parent -subsidiary consolidated 
financial statements has been disclosed in the previously disclosed parent -
subsidiary consolidated financial statements,  and the relationship will not be 
prepared separately Business consolidated financial statements.  
 

Hereby declare  
 
 
 
A M I A C O . ,  LT D .  
C h a i r m a n :  C H E N ,  K U O - C H I N  
 
February 22,2023, 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
The Board of Directors and Shareholders 
AMIA CO., LTD.  
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of AMIA CO., LTD. and 
its subsidiaries , which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2022 and 
2021, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash 
flows for the years then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a 
summary of significant accounting policies . 
 
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all 
material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as of December 31, 2022 and 
2021, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the years 
then ended in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports 
by Securities Issuers, and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), International 
Accounting Standards (IAS), IFRIC Interpretations (IFRIC), and SIC Interpretations (SIC) 
endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of 
China. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and 
Attestation of Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants and the Standards on 
Auditing of the Republic of China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further 
described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with The 
Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public Accountant of the Republic of China, and we 
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. 
 
 
Key Audit Matters 
 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 
31, 2022. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 
opinion on these matters. 
 
The descriptions of the key audit matters of the consolidated financial statements for the year 
ended December 31, 2022 are as follows:  
 
Revenue Recognition 
 
AMIA CO., LTD. and its subsidiaries mainly sell PCB chemical products and green products 
COPPER-SULPHATE. And sales revenue is a key indicator for management to evaluate 
business performance. We analyze the financial information of each customer and select 
customers that meet certain criteria. The risk of sales revenue for customers meeting certain 
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criteria is higher than that of ordinary customers. The veracity of sales revenue recognition is 
considered a critical review. 

We performed the following audit procedures in respect of the above key audit matter: 

1. We understood the key internal controls related to sales revenue recognition and tested the
operating effectiveness of these controls

2. We perform a sample of revenues that meet specific criteria and confirm their amounts to
verify the relevant certificates to assess the validity of revenue recognition.

Other Matter 

We have also audited the parent company only financial statements of AMIA CO., LTD. as of 
and for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 on which we have issued an unmodified 
opinion. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 
Consolidated Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated 
financial statements in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial 
Reports by Securities Issuers, and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), 
International Accounting Standards (IAS), IFRIC Interpretations (IFRIC), and SIC 
Interpretations (SIC) endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission 
of the Republic of China, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary 
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either 
intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance, including the audit committee, are responsible for overseeing 
the Group’s financial reporting process. 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 
to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing of the Republic of China will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in 
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, we 
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We 
also: 
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1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 
2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control. 

 
3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 
 
4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to 
continue as a going concern. 

 
5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial 

statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 
6. Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of 

entities or business activities within AMIA CO., LTD. to express an opinion on the 
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision, and 
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards. 
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements for 
the year ended December 31, 2022, and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these 
matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the 
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably 
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 
 
The engagement partners on the audits resulting in this independent auditors’ report are Tseng, 
Chien-Ming and Wang, Pan-Fa. 
 
 
 
 
 
Deloitte & Touche 
Taipei, Taiwan 
Republic of China 
 
February 22, 2023 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Notice to Readers 
 
The accompanying consolidated financial statements are intended only to present the 
consolidated financial position, financial performance and cash flows in accordance with 
accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the Republic of China and not those 
of any other jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practices to audit such consolidated 
financial statements are those generally applied in the Republic of China.  
 
For the convenience of readers, the independent auditors’ report and the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements have been translated into English from the original Chinese 
version prepared and used in the Republic of China. If there is any conflict between the English 
version and the original Chinese version or any difference in the interpretation of the two 
versions, the Chinese-language independent auditors’ report and consolidated financial 
statements shall prevail. 
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AMIA CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES  

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS  
DECEMBER 31 ,  2022 AND 2021  
(In Thousands of  New Taiwan Dol lars)  
 
    2022  2021 
 Code  Assets  Amount  %  Amount  % 
  CURRENT ASSETS         
1100  Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 4 and 6)    $  465,540     16    $  465,905     19 
1110  Current financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Notes 4 and 7)     2,494     -     3,081     - 
1136  Current financial assets at amortized cost (Notes 4 and 9)     76,944     3     92,991     4 
1150  Notes receivable, net (Notes 4 and 10)     24,658     1     38,207     2 
1170  Accounts receivable, net (Notes 4 and 10)     377,578     13     494,819     20 
1180  Accounts receivable due from related parties, net (Notes 4, 10 and 30)     4,605     -     9,219     - 
1200  Other receivables (Note 10)     14,496     -     23,917     1 
1220  Current tax assets (Note 25)     6,320     -     4,500     - 
130X  Current inventories (Notes 4 and 11)     207,356     7     184,295     7 
1479  Other current assets, others (Note 16)     35,381     1     35,485     1 
11XX  Total current assets     1,215,372     41     1,352,419     54 
                       
  Non-current assets         
1517  Non-current financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive 

income (Notes 4 and 8) 
 

   2,640     -     2,640     - 
1535  Non-current financial assets at amortized cost (Notes 4 and 9)     200,111     7     199,215     8 
1550  Investments accounted for using equity method (Notes 4 and 13)     28,074     1     27,802     1 
1600  Property, plant and equipment (Notes 4 and 14)     1,389,217     48     820,510     33 
1755  Right-of-use assets (Notes 4 and 15)     37,628     1     59,596     2 
1840  Deferred tax assets (Notes 4 and 25)     19,757     1     29,923     1 
1915  Prepayments for business facilities (Note 32)     34,224     1     22,218     1 
1920  Guarantee deposits paid     7,248     -     9,538     - 
15XX  Total non-current assets     1,718,899     59     1,171,442     46 
                       
1XXX  TOTAL ASSETS    $  2,934,271     100    $  2,523,861     100 
           
Code  LIABILITIES AND EQUITY         
  CURRENT LIABILITIES         
2100  Current borrowings (Note 17)    $  170,000     6    $  375,500     15 
2110  Short-term notes and bills payable (Note 17)     -     -     30,000     1 
2130  Current contract liabilities(Note 23)     3,164     -     1,483     - 
2150  Notes payable (Note 18)     805     -     689     - 
2170  Accounts payable (Note 18)     261,800     9     409,526     16 
2200  Other payables (Note 19)     162,648     5     202,987     8 
2230  Current tax liabilities(Note 25)     25,879     1     -     - 
2280  Current lease liabilities(Notes 4 and 15)     18,847     1     21,867     1 
2320  Long-term liabilities, current portion(Note 17)     16,680     1     29,922     1 
2399  Other current liabilities, others (Note 19)     6,442     -     6,307     1 
21XX  TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES     666,265     23     1,078,281     43 
                       
  NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES         
2540  Non-current portion of non-current borrowings(Note 17)     516,320     18     6,363     - 
2550  Non-current provisions (Notes 4 and 20)     5,133     -     5,047     - 
2570  Deferred tax liabilities (Notes 4 and 25)     5,550     -     2,465     - 
2580  Non-current lease liabilities(Notes 4 and 15)     7,287     -     24,207     1 
2640  Net defined benefit liability, non-current (Notes 4 and 21)     31,333     1     41,344     2 
2645  Guarantee deposits received     10     -     20     - 
25XX  TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES     565,633     19     79,446     3 
                       
2XXX  TOTAL LIABILITIES     1,231,898     42     1,157,727     46 
                       
  EQUITY (Note 22)         
3110  Ordinary share     705,180     24     628,990     25 
3200  Capital surplus e     625,932     21     346,491     14 
  Retained earnings         
3310  Legal reserve     90,724     3     68,604     3 
3320  Special reserve      41,398     1     37,426     1 
3350  Unappropriated retained earnings     283,790     10     343,155     14 
3300  Total retained earnings     415,912     14     449,185     18 
3490  Other equity   (  32,976 )   (  1 )   (  41,398 )   (  2 ) 
3500  Treasury shares   (  11,675 )     -   (  17,134 )   (  1 ) 
3XXX  TOTAL EQUITY     1,702,373     58     1,366,134     54 
                       
  TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY    $  2,934,271     100    $  2,523,861     100 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part  of the consolidated financial statements.  
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AMIA CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,  202 2 AND 2021  
(In Thousands of  New Taiwan Dol lars,  Except  Earnings per Share)  
 

    2022  2021 
Code    Amount  %  Amount  % 
  Operating revenue         
4110  Sales revenue(Notes 4, 23 and 30) 

   $  3,756,250     101  
  $ 

 4,218,452     100 
4170  Sales returns   (    104)     -     -     - 
4190  Sales discounts and allowances   (  35,040)   ( 1)   ( 14,502)     - 
4000  Net sales revenue     3,721,106     100     4,203,950     100 
                       
5000  Operating costs(Notes 4, 11 and 24)     3,359,625     90     3,647,706     87 
                       
5900  Gross profit from operations     361,481     10     556,244     13 
                       
  Operating expenses(Notes 24 and 30)         
6100  Selling expenses     112,013     3     130,291     3 
6200  Administrative expenses     149,685     4     171,922     4 
6300  Research and development expenses     4,122     -     4,259     - 
6450  Impairment loss (impairment gain and 

reversal of impairment loss) 
determined in accordance with IFRS 
9   (   651)     -     961     - 

6000  Total operating expenses     265,169     7     307,433     7 
                       
6900  Net operating income     96,312     3     248,811     6 
                       
  Non-operating income and expenses(Note 

24)         
7100  Interest income     12,023     -     13,300     - 
7190  Other income     8,589     -     8,177     - 
7020  Other gains and losses     30,008     1   (   6,144)     - 
7050  Finance costs   (  11,785)     -   (   9,396)     - 
7060  Share of profit (loss) of associates and 

joint ventures accounted for 
using(Note 13)     7,292     -     12,093     - 

7000  Total non-operating income and 
expenses     46,127     1     18,030     - 

           
 

 
(Continued)  
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AMIA CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 ,  202 2  AND 2021  
(In Thousands of  New  Taiw an Dol lars ,  Ex cept  Earning s per Share)  
 

    2022  2021 
Code    Amount  %  Amount  % 
7900  Profit from continuing operations 

before tax     142,439      4     266,841      6 
                       
7950  Tax expense(Notes 4 and 25)   (  42,647)   ( 1)   (    46,136)   (  1) 
                       
8200  Profit     99,792      3     220,705      5 
                       
  Other comprehensive income         
8310  Components of other 

comprehensive income that 
will not be reclassified to profit 
or loss         

8311  Gains (losses) on re-
measurements of defined 
benefit plans (Note 21)     7,651      -     490     - 

8360  Components of other 
comprehensive income that 
will be reclassified to profit or 
loss         

8361  Exchange differences on 
translation     10,528      -   (  4,965 )     - 

8399  Income tax related to 
components of other 
comprehensive income 
that will be reclassified to 
profit or loss   (    2,106)     -     993      - 

       8,422      -   (  3,972 )     - 
8300  Total other comprehensive 

income     16,073      -   (  3,482 )     - 
                       
8500  Total comprehensive income    $  115,865      3    $  217,223     5 
                       
  Earnings per share(Note 26)         
9710  Basic earnings per share    $  1.46         $  3.56      
9810  Diluted earnings per share    $  1.45         $  3.51      
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part  of the consolidate d financial statements.  
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AMIA CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS  
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 ,  2022  AND 2021  
(In Thousands of  New  Taiw an Dol lars )  
 

Code    2022  2021 
  Cash flows from operating activities     

A10000  Profit before tax    $  142,439    $  266,841 
A20010  Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss)     
A20300  Expected credit loss (gain) / Provision 

(reversal of provision) for bad debt 
expense   (  651 )     961 

A20100  Depreciation expense     95,808     115,501 
A20400  Net loss (gain) on financial assets or 

liabilities at fair value through profit or 
loss     446   (  200 ) 

A20900  Interest expense     11,785     9,396 
A21200  Interest income   (  12,023 )   (  13,300 ) 
A21300  Dividend income   (  489 )   (  512 ) 
A21900  Share-based payments     1,732     - 
A22300  Share of loss (profit) of associates and joint 

ventures accounted for using equity 
method   (  7,292 )   (  12,093 ) 

A22500  Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant 
and equipment   (  332 )     634 

A23800  Reversal of impairment loss on non-
financial assets   (  2,636 )   (  21,409 ) 

A29900  Other adjustments to reconcile profit   (  481 )     - 
A30000  Changes in operating assets and liabilities     
A31130  Decrease (increase) in notes receivable     13,549   (  5,244 ) 
A31150  Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable     122,469   (  143,317 ) 
A31200  Decrease (increase) in inventories   (  20,470 )     33,721 
A31240  Adjustments for decrease (increase) in other 

current assets   (  89 )     5,031 
A32125  Increase (decrease) in contract liabilities     1,681   (  5,802 ) 
A32130  Increase (decrease) in notes payable     116   (  1,481 ) 
A32150  Increase (decrease) in accounts payable   (  147,726 )     103,488 
A32180  Increase (decrease) in other payable   (  40,806 )     59,392 
A32230  Adjustments for increase (decrease) in other 

current liabilities     135   (  6 ) 
A32240  Increase (decrease) in net defined benefit 

liability   (  2,360 )   (  2,406 ) 
A33000  Cash inflow (outflow) generated from operations     154,805     389,195 
A33100  Interest received     21,517     6,308 
A33300  Interest paid   (  11,232 )   (  9,464 ) 
A33500  Income taxes refund (paid)   (  7,443 )   (  28,534 ) 
AAAA  Net cash flows from (used in) operating 

activities     157,647     357,505 
 
(Continued  on next  page)  
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AMIA CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS  
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 ,  2022  AND 2021  
(In Thousands of  New  Taiw an Dol lars )  

 
 

Code    2022  2021 
             
  Cash flows from (used in) investing activities     
B00040  Acquisition of financial assets at amortized cost   (  280,613 )   (  90,229 ) 
B00050  Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at 

amortized cost     295,764     153,980 
B00100  Acquisition of financial assets at fair value 

through profit or loss    (  8,000 )   (  10,000 ) 
B00200  Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair 

value through profit or loss     8,141     7,119 
B02700  Acquisition of property, plant and equipment   (  639,101 )   (  69,504 ) 
B02800  Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and 

equipment     434     830 
B03800  Decrease in refundable deposits     2,290     1,329 
B07100  Increase in prepayments for business facilities   (  13,412 )   (  17,825 ) 
B07600  Dividends received     7,908     512 
BBBB  Net cash flows from (used in) investing 

activities   (  626,589 )   (  23,788 ) 
             
  Cash flows from (used in) financing activities     
C00100  Increase in short-term loans     1,173,500     940,153 
C00200  Decrease in short-term loans   (  1,409,000 )   (  1,049,537 ) 
C01600  Proceeds from long-term debt     737,000     - 
C01700  Repayments of long-term debt   (  240,285 )   (  132,685 ) 
C03000  Increase in guarantee deposits received     -     20 
C03100  Decrease in guarantee deposits received   (  10 )     - 
C04000  Decrease in lease payable   (  19,402 )   (  30,426 ) 
C04500  Cash dividends paid   (  139,886 )   (  55,871 ) 
C04600  Proceeds from issuing shares     358,540     - 
CCCC  Net cash flows from (used in) financing 

activities     460,457   (  328,346 ) 
             
DDDD  Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash 

equivalents     8,120   (  4,023 ) 
             
EEEE  Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents   (  365 )     1,348 
             
E00100  Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period     465,905     464,557 
             
E00200  Cash and cash equivalents at end of period    $  465,540    $  465,905 
       

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part  of the consolidated financial statements.  
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AMIA CO., LTD. and its subsidiaries  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements  
January 1 to December 31, 2022 and 2021  
(Unless otherwise specified, the amount is in thousands of NT dollars)  
 
1.  History of the Company 

AMIA CO., LTD. (hereinafter referred to as " the Company”)  was 
established on October 23, 1989 in accordance with the Company Law and 
relevant laws and regulations. The main business is the processing, 
manufacturing, trading and recycling of various industrial  chemicals.  

The Company's stock has been listed and traded on the Taiwan Stock 
Exchange since March 11, 2022. 

This consolidated financial  report  is  expressed in New Taiwan dollars,  
the Company's functional currency.  

 
2.  Date and procedure for approval of financial report  

This consolidated financial report was approved by the board of directors 
on February 22, 2023. 

 
3.  Application of newly released and revised standards and interpretations  

(1)  Applying for the first  time the International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRS),  International Accounting Standards (IAS), Interpretations (IFRIC) 
and Interpretations (SIC) (hereinafter referred to as "IFRSs")  

The application of the revised IFRSs approved and issued by the 
Financial Supervisory Commission will not cause major changes in the 
accounting policies of the Company and entities controlled by the 
Company (hereinafter referred to as "merged companies" ).  

(2)  IFRSs approved by the Financial  Supervisory  Commission applicable in 
2023 

Newly issued/amended/revised standards and 
interpretations  Effective date of 

publication by the IASB 
Amendments to IAS 1 "Disclosure of Accounting 

Policies" 
 January 1 , 2023 ( Note 1 ) 

IAS 8 "Definition of Accounting Estimates"  January 1 , 2023 ( Note 2 ) 
IAS 12 "Deferred income tax relating to assets and 

liabilities arising from a single transaction" 
 January 1 , 2023 ( Note 3 ) 

 
Note1: This amendment applies to the annual reporting period beginning 

after January 1, 2023. 
Note2: This amendment applies to  changes in accounting estimates 

and changes in accounting policies that occur during the annual 
reporting period beginning after January 1, 2023.  

Note3: Except for the recognition of deferred income tax on temporary 
differences in lease and decommissioning obligations on January 
1, 2022, this amendment is applicable to transactions occurring 
after January 1, 2022. 

As of the release date of this consolidated financial report, the 
consolidated company's assessment of othe r standards and amendments 
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to interpretations will not have a significant impact on the financial 
status and financial performance.  

(3)  The IASB has issued but not yet approved by the Financial  Supervisory 
Commission and issued effective IFRSs  

Newly issued/amended/revised standards and 
interpretations  

Effective date of 
publication by the IASB 

(Note 1) 
IFRS 10 and IAS 28 "Asset Sale or Contribution 

between Investors and Their Affiliates or Joint 
Ventures" 

 undecided 

Amendments to IFRS 16 "Lease Liability in Sale and 
Leaseback" 

 January 1, 2024 (Note 2) 

IFRS 17 "Contracts of Insurance"  January 1 , 2023 
Amendments to IFRS 17  January 1 , 2023  
IFRS 17 "Initial Application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 - 

Comparative Information" 
 January 1 , 2023  

IAS 1 "Classification of Liabilities as Current or 
Non-Current" 

 January 1 , 2024  

Amendments to IAS 1 "Non-current liabilities with 
contractual terms" 

 January 1, 2024 

 
Note 1: Unless otherwise specified, the above-mentioned newly 

issued/amended/revised standards or  interpretations are 
effective for the annual reporting period starting after the 
respective dates.  

Note 2:  The seller and lessee shall apply the amendments of IFRS 16 
retrospectively to the sale and leaseback transactions signed 
after the first  application of IFRS 16.  

As of the release date of this consolidated financial report,  the 
consolidated company is sti ll  evaluating the impact of amendments to 
other standards and interpretations on its financial  status and financial  
performance, and the relevant imp act will  be disclosed when the 
assessment is  completed.  

 
4.  Summary of major accounting policies  

(1)  Follow the statement  
This consolidated financial report  is prepared in accordance with the 

Financial Reporting Standards for Securities Issuers and the I FRSs 
approved and issued by the Financial Supervisory Commission. 

(2)  Compilation basis  
The consolidated financial  statements have been prepared on the 

historical  cost basis, except for financial instruments measured at fair 
value and net defined benefit liabilities recognized at the present value of 
defined benefit obligations less the fair value of plan assets.  

Fair value measurement is divided into levels 1 to 3 according to the 
degree of observabili ty and importance of relevant input values:  
1.  Level 1 input value: refers to the quoted price (unadjusted) in an active 

market for the same asset  or liabil ity that can be obtained on the 
measurement date.  
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2.  Level 2 input value: Refers to the observable input value of an asset  
or liability that is directly (that  is , price) or indirect  (that  is,  derived 
from price) in addition to quotations at level 1.  

3.  Level 3 input value: Refers to the unobservable input value of assets 
or l iabilities.  

(3)  Criteria for distinguishing current and non -current assets and liabilities  
Current assets include:  
1.  Assets held primarily for trading purposes;  
2.  Assets expected to be realized within 12 months after the balance sheet 

date; and 
3.  Cash and cash equivalents (but excluding those subject  to restrictions 

on exchange or sett lement of liabilities more than 12 months after the 
balance sheet date).  

Current liabilities include:  
1.  Liabilities held primarily for trading purposes;  
2.  Liabilities that are due to be settled within 12 months after the balance 

sheet data ( even if a long-term refinancing or rescheduled payment  
agreement has been completed after the balance sheet date and before 
the release of the financial report,  it  is  also a current liabili ty ) ,  and  

3.  Liabilities that cannot unconditionally defer the sett lement period to 
at least  12 months after the balance sheet date.  However, if  the terms 
of the liability may be settled by issuing equity instruments at  the 
option of the counterparty, this does not affect the classification.  
Those that  are not the above-mentioned current assets or current 

liabilities are classified as non-current assets or non-current liabili ties.  
(4)  Consolidation Basis  

This consolidated financial report  includes the financial reports of the 
Company and entities (subsidiaries) controlled  by the Company. The 
consolidated comprehensive income statement has included the operating 
profit and loss of the acquired or disposed subsidiary in the current period 
from the date of acquisition or to the date of disposal. The subsidiaries '  
financial reports have been adjusted to bring their accounting policies into 
line with those of the consolidated company. When preparing the 
consolidated financial report,  all transactions, account balances, income 
and expenses between entities have been eliminated. T he total 
comprehensive profit  or loss of the subsidiaries is  attributed to the owners 
of the Company and non-controll ing interests, even if the non-controlling 
interests thus become the balance of the loss.  

When the change of the ownership interest of the merged company to 
the subsidiary does not lead to the loss of control, it  is treated as an equity 
transaction. The carrying amounts of the combined companies and non -
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect changes in their relative 
interests in the subsidiaries. The difference between the adjusted amount 
of the non-controlling interest and the fair value of the consideration paid 
or received is directly recognized as equity and attributable to the owners 
of the Company. 

For details  of subsidiaries,  shareholding ratios and business items, 
please refer to Note 12 and Schedules 3 and 4.  

(5)  Foreign currency 

- 14 -



 

 

When each entity prepares financial reports, transactions in 
currencies other than the individual 's  functional currency (foreign 
currency) shall be converted into functional currency records at the 
exchange rate on the transaction day.  

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated at 
the closing rates at  each balance sheet date.  Exchange differences arising 
from delivery of monetary i tems or translation of monetary items are 
recognized in profit  or loss in the period in which they occur.  

Foreign currency non-monetary items measured by fair  value are 
translated at  the exchange rate on the day when the fair value is 
determined, and the resulting exchange difference is listed as current 
profit or loss. However, if the change in fair value is recognized in other 
comprehensive profit or loss,  the resulting exchange difference is listed 
as in other comprehensive income.  

Non-monetary items in foreign currencies measured at historical cost 
are translated at  the exchange rate on the transaction date and will not be 
re-translated.  

When preparing the consolidated financial report, the assets and 
liabilities of foreign operating institutions (includ ing subsidiaries and 
affiliated companies operating in a country or using a currency different 
from that of the Company) are converted into New Taiwan Dollars at the 
exchange rate on each balance sheet date.  Income and expense items are 
translated at the current average exchange rate, and the resulting exchange 
differences are listed in other comprehensive income.  

If the merged company disposes of all  the interests in the foreign 
operating institution, or disposes of part of the interests in the subsidiary 
of the foreign operating institution but loses control,  or the retained 
interest  after disposing of the affiliated enterprises of the foreign 
operating institution is a financial asset, i t  shall be treated in accordance 
with the accounting policies for fin ancial instruments ,  al l accumulated 
exchange differences attributable to the owner of the Company and related 
to the foreign operating institution will be reclassified to profit or loss.  

If  the partial  disposal  of a subsidiary of a foreign operating insti tution 
does not lead to loss of control,  the accumulated exchange difference is 
re-attributed to the non-controlling interest of the subsidiary in proportion, 
but it  is  not recognized as profit or loss.  In the case of any other partial 
disposal  of foreign operations, the accumulated exchange differences are 
reclassified to profit or loss in proportion to the disposal.  

(6)  Inventory 
Inventories include raw materials, supplies, semi -finished products,  

finished goods, work in progress and merchandise.  Invento ries are 
measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value, and the comparison 
between cost and net  realizable value is based on individual items except 
for inventories of the same category. Net realizable value is the estimated 
selling price under normal circumstances less the estimated cost to 
complete the project  and the estimated cost  to complete the sale. The 
calculation of inventory cost adopts the weighted average method.  

(7)  Investing in affi liated companies  
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Affiliated enterprises refer to ent erprises that have significant 
influence on the merged company, but are not subsidiaries or joint venture 
interests.  

The equity method is adopted to invest in affiliated enterprises of the 
merged company.  

Under the equity method, an investment in an affili ated enterprise is 
initially recognized at cost , and the book value after acquisition will 
increase or decrease with the combined company's share of the affiliated 
enterprise 's  profit or loss, other comprehensive profit or loss,  and profit  
distribution. In  addit ion, changes in the equity of related companies are 
recognized on a shareholding basis.  

The amount of the acquisition cost exceeding the net fair value share 
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the affiliated company enjoyed 
by the merged company on the acquisition date is listed as goodwill, which 
is included in the book value of the investment and cannot be amortized; 
The excess of the share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and 
liabilities of the affil iated enterprise over the acquisition cost  is listed as 
current income.  

When an affil iated company issues new shares,  if the merging 
company does not subscribe in accordance with the shareholding ratio, 
resulting in a change in the shareholding ratio, and thus resulting in an 
increase or decrease in the net equity value of the investment,  the increase 
or decrease shall be adjusted to the capital reserve - the equity method 
shall be used to recognize the related party Changes in the net  equity value 
of enterprises and joint ventures and investments using the equity method. 
However, if the ownership interest in the affiliated enterprise is reduced 
by not subscribing or obtaining it according to the shareholding ratio, the 
amount recognized in other comprehensive profit  and loss rel ated to the 
affiliated enterprise will be reclassified according to the reduction ratio, 
and the basis of accounting treatment is related to the affi liated enterprise 
If the basis for directly disposing of related assets or liabili ties is  the 
same ;  if  the adjustment in the preceding paragraph should be debited to 
the capital reserve, and if the balance of the capital  reserve generated by 
the investment using the equity method is insufficient, the difference will  
be debited to the retained surplus.  

When the merging company's loss share of the affiliated enterprise is 
equal to or exceeds its equity in the affi liated enterprise (including the 
book value of the investment in the affil iated enterprise under the equity 
method and other long-term interests that are substantially part of the 
merging company's net investment in the affiliated enterprise) ,  which 
ceases to recognize further losses. The merged company recognizes 
additional losses and liabilities only within the scope of statutory 
obligations,  construct ive obligations or payments made on behalf of 
related companies.  

When the consolidated company assesses the impairment,  it  regards 
the overall  book value of the investment (including goodwill) as a single 
asset and compares the recoverable amount with the book value to conduct 
an impairment test. The recognized impairment loss is not apportioned to 
the components that  consti tute the investment book amount any assets. 
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Any reversal  of the impairment loss is recognized to the extent of 
subsequent increases in the recoverable amount of the investment.  

The merged company ceases to adopt the equity method on the date 
when its investment ceases to be an affiliated enterprise,  and i ts retained 
interests in the original affiliated enterprise shall  be measured at fair  value.  
Included in current profit and loss. In addition, al l amounts related to the 
affiliated enterprise recognized in other comprehensive profit  or loss are 
accounted for on the same basis as would be required if the affiliated 
enterprise directly disposes of the related assets or l iabili ties. If  the 
investment in an affiliated enterprise becomes an investment in a joint 
venture, or if the investment in a joint venture becomes an investment in 
an affi liated enterprise,  the consolidated company continues to use the 
equity method without re -measurement of the retained interest .  

Profit and loss arising from upstream, downstream, and side stream 
transactions between the merging company and affiliated companies shall  
be recognized in the consolidated financial  report  only to the extent that  
it  is  not related to the merging company's rights and interests in the 
affiliated company.  

(8)  Real estate, plant and equipment  
Property,  plant and equipment are recognized at  cost  and subsequently 

measured at  cost  less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses.  

Except for self -owned land, which is not depreciated,  other real  estate,  
plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight -line basis within their 
useful l ives, and each major part is depreciated sep arately.  The combined 
company shall  review the estimated service life, salvage value and 
depreciation method at  least at  the end of each year.  And postpone the 
impact of changes in applicable accounting estimates.  

The difference between the net disposal  pr ice on recognition of 
property,  plant and equipment and the carrying amount of the asset is 
recognized in profit  or loss.  

(9)  Impairment of assets related to real estate, plant and equipment and right -
of-use assets  

The Combined Company assesses at each ba lance sheet date whether 
there are any indications that property,  plant and equipment and right -of-
use assets may have been impaired. If any indication of impairment exists,  
the asset 's  recoverable amount is estimated. If i t  is  not possible to estimate 
the recoverable amount of an individual asset , the Merging Company 
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash -generating unit  to which the 
asset belongs. Shared assets are allocated to the smallest group of cash -
generating units on a reasonable and consiste nt basis.  

The recoverable amount is  the higher of fair value less costs of 
disposal  and value in use.  If  the recoverable amount of an individual asset  
or cash-generating unit is lower than its  carrying amount,  the carrying 
amount of the asset  or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable 
amount,  and the impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss.  

The inventory, real estate, plant and equipment and intangible assets 
recognized in the customer contract  are firstly recognized as impairment 
in accordance with the provisions on inventory impairment and the above -
mentioned regulations, and then the book value of the contract cost related 
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assets exceeds the expected consideration that can be received for the 
provision of related goods or services. The amount after deducting the 
directly related costs is  recognized as an impairment loss,  and the carrying 
amount of the asset related to the contract cost is included in the cash -
generating unit  to which the cash -generating unit belongs for impairment 
assessment of the cash-generating unit.  

When the impairment loss is  subsequently reversed, the carrying 
amount of the asset  or cash-generating unit is increased to the revised 
recoverable amount,  but the increased carrying amount shall  not exceed 
that  of the asset or cash-generating unit  if no impairment was recognized 
in the previous year The carrying amount (less amortization or 
depreciation) determined at the time of the loss. The reversal of the 
impairment loss is  recognized in profit or loss.  

(10)  Financial  instruments 
Financial  assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the 

consolidated balance sheet when the merging company becomes a party to 
the contractual  terms of the instrument.  

Initially recognizing financial assets and financial liabilities,  if the 
financial assets or financial l iabilities are not measured at fair value 
through profit or loss, they are measured at  fair value plus transaction 
costs directly attributable to the acquisition or issuance of financial assets 
or financial  liabili t ies.  Transaction costs directly attributable to the 
acquisition or issue of a financial asset or financial liability at fair value 
through profit or loss are recognized immediately in profit or loss.  
1.  Financial assets  

Customary transactions of financial as sets are recognized and 
delisted using transaction date accounting.  

(1)  Measurement type 
The types of financial assets held by the combined company 

are financial  assets measured at  fair  value through profit or loss,  
financial assets measured at  amortized cost, and equity instrument 
investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive 
profit  or loss.  
A. Financial  assets at fair value through profit  or loss  

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include 
financial assets that  are mandated to be measured at fair value 
through profit or loss. Financial assets that are mandatory to 
be measured at fair value through profit or loss include equity 
instrument investments that are not designated as measured at  
fair value through other comprehensive profit or loss, and debt 
instrument investments that do not qualify for classification as 
measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other 
comprehensive profit  or loss.  

Financial assets at  fair value through profit  or loss are 
measured at fair value with premeasurement gains or losses 
recognized in other gains and losses. For the determination 
method of fair value,  please refer to Note 29. 

B. Financial assets measured at amortized cost  
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Financial assets invested by the merged company shall be 
classified as financial assets measured at amortized cost if  
both of the following two conditions are met:  
a. is held under a business model whose purpose is to hold 

financial assets for the purpose of receiving contractual 
cash flows; and 

b. The terms of the contract give rise to cash flows on a 
specified date that are solely payments of principal and 
interest on the outstanding principal  amount.  

After original recognition, financial assets measured at  
amortized cost (including cash and cash equivalents, a ccounts 
receivable measured at amortized cost, and security deposits) 
are determined using the effective interest method minus the 
total  carrying amount Any foreign exchange gain or loss is 
recognized in profit or loss,  in addition to the amortized cost  
measurement of any impairment loss.  

Except for the following two cases, interest  income is 
calculated by multiplying the effective interest rate by the 
total  book value of financial assets:  
a. For credit -impaired financial assets purchased or created, 

interest income is calculated by multiplying the effective 
interest rate after credit adjustment by the amortized cost 
of the financial asset .  

b. For financial assets that are not purchased or created 
credit-impaired but subsequently become credit -impaired, 
interest income shall  be calculated at the effective interest  
rate multiplied by the amortized cost of the financial  asset 
from the reporting period following the credit -impairment.  

Credit-impaired financial  assets refer to the fact  that  the 
issuer or debtor has experienced major financial difficulties,  
defaulted, the debtor is likely to fi le for bankruptcy or other 
financial reorganization, or the active market for financial 
assets has disappeared due to financial difficulties.  

Equivalent cash includes highly l iquid time deposits 
within 3 months from the date of acquisition ,  which can be 
converted into fixed cash at any time and have l ittle risk of 
value change, and are used to meet short -term cash 
commitments.  

C. Investment in equity instruments measured at  f air  value 
through other comprehensive income  

At the time of original recognition, the merging company 
may make an irrevocable choice to designate the investment in 
equity instruments that are not held for trading and recognized 
as contingent consideration  by the acquirer of the business 
combination to be measured at fair value through other 
comprehensive gains and losses.  

Investments in equity instruments measured at  fair value 
through other comprehensive profit or loss are measured at  fair 
value, with subsequent fair value changes presented in other 
comprehensive profit  or loss and accumulated in other equity.  
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When the investment is  disposed of,  the accumulated profit  or 
loss is directly transferred to retained earnings and is not 
reclassified as profit  or  loss.  

Dividends on investments in equity instruments at  fair 
value through other comprehensive income are recognized in 
profit or loss when the merging company's right to receive 
payment is established, unless the dividend clearly represents 
a recovery of part of the cost  of the investment.  

(2)  Impairment of financial assets  
The combined company assesses impairment losses on 

financial assets (including accounts receivable) measured at  
amortized cost  based on expected credit  losses at  each balance 
sheet date.  

Accounts receivable are recognized as allowance losses based 
on expected credit  losses during the duration. For other financial  
assets, first  assess whether the credit risk has increased 
significantly since the original recognition. If there is no 
significant increase, the provision loss will be recognized as the 
12 -month expected credit loss.  If  there has been a significant 
increase, it  will be recognized as the expected credit loss during 
the duration Allow for losses.  

Expected credit losses are weighted average credit losses 
weighted by the risk of default. The 12 -month expected credit  
loss represents the expected credit  loss arising from possible 
default events of the financial instrument within 12 months after 
the reporting date,  and the expected credit loss during the 
duration represents the expected credit  loss arising from all  
possible default events of the financial  instrument during the 
expected duration.  

For the purpose of internal credit risk management, the 
merged company judges that the fo llowing situations represent 
financial assets in default  without considering the collateral  held:  
A. There is internal  or external information showing that it  is  

impossible for the debtor to repay the debt.  
B. Overdue for more than 365 days, unless there i s reasonable and 

corroborated information showing that a delayed default basis 
is more appropriate.  
Impairment losses on all financial assets reduce their carrying 

amounts through the allowance account,  except that  al lowance 
losses on debt instrument inves tments at fair value through other 
comprehensive income are recognized in other comprehensive 
income without reducing their carrying amounts.  

(3)  Delisting of financial assets  
The Company delists financial assets only when the 

contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets 
lapse,  or when the financial assets have been transferred and 
almost all  the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets have 
been transferred to other enterprises.  
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When a financial  asset  is  measured at  amortized cost  as  a 
whole,  the difference between its  carrying amount and the 
consideration received is recognized in profit or loss.  

When an equity instrument investment measured at fair value 
through other comprehensive income is delisted as a whole, the 
accumulated gain or loss is transferred directly to retained 
earnings and is not reclassified as profit or loss.  

2. Equity instruments   
Debt and equity instruments issued by the consolidated company 

are classified as financial  liabilit ies or equity according to the 
substance of the contract agreement and the definition of financial  
liabilities and equity instruments.  

The equity instruments issued by the merged company are 
recognized at the amount obtained after deducting the direct  issuance 
costs.  

3. Financial liabilities   
(1)  Subsequent measurement  

Financial  liabilit ies are measured at amortized cost  using the 
effective interest  method.  

(2)  Delisting of financial liabilities  
On delisting a financial liabil ity, the difference between its  

carrying amount and the considerat ion paid (including any non-
cash assets transferred or l iabilities assumed) is recognized in 
profit  or loss.  

(11)  Provision for liabilit ies  
The amount recognized as a liabil ity reserve is the best estimate of 

the expenditure required to settle the obligat ion on the balance sheet date,  
taking into account the risks and uncertainties of the obligation. The 
liability provision is measured at  the discounted value of the estimated 
cash flows of the settlement obligation.  

(12)  Revenue recognition  
After the consolidated company identifies the performance 

obligations in the customer contract , it al locates the transaction price to 
each performance obligation, and recognizes revenue when each 
performance obligation is satisfied.  
Merchandise sales revenue  

When the control of the goods is transferred to the customer (for 
export  sales when the sales conditions specified in the contract  are 
fulfilled;  for domestic sales,  when the goods are delivered),  the customer 
has the right to determine the price and use of the goods  and bears the 
primary responsibili ty for reselling the goods,  and bear the risk of 
obsolete goods, the Company recognizes revenue and accounts receivable 
at this point in time. Advance receipts from sales are recognized as 
contract liabilities.  

(13)  Rent  
The Merging Company assesses whether the contract  is  (or contains) 

a lease on the contract inception date.  
Merger Company as lessee 

Except for leases of low-value underlying assets to which the 
recognition exemption applies and lease payments for short -term leases,  
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which are recognized as expenses on a straight -line basis over the lease 
term, other leases are recognized as right -of-use assets and lease liabil ities 
on the lease inception date.  

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost (including the 
original measured amount of the lease liabili ty,  lease payments less lease 
incentives received before the lease commencement date,  original direct 
costs and the estimated cost  of restoring the underlying asset),  and is 
subsequently measured at cost les s accumulated depreciation and The 
amount after the accumulated impairment loss is  measured, and the 
premeasurement  amount of the lease liabili ty is adjusted. Right -of-use 
assets are presented separately in the consolidated balance sheet.  

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight -l ine basis from the 
commencement date of the lease to the expiry of the useful life or the 
expiry of the lease term, whichever is earl ier.  

The lease liabili ty is initially measured at the present value of the 
lease payments (including fixed payments). If  the implied interest rate of 
the lease is  easy to determine, the lease payment shall  be discounted using 
the interest rate. If this rate is not readily determined, the lessee 
incremental borrowing rate is used.  

Subsequently,  the lease liability is measured on an amortized cost 
basis using the effective interest method, and the interest expense is 
amortized over the lease term. If changes in the lease term lead to changes 
in future lease payments, the merged company will re -measure the lease 
liability and adjust  the right -of-use asset accordingly.  However,  if the 
book value of the right -of-use asset has been reduced to zero, the 
remaining re-measured amount will be recognized in profit  or loss. Lease 
liabilities are presented separately in the consolidated balance sheet.  

(14)  Borrowing costs  
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction 

or production of a qualifying asset are included as part  of the cost  of the 
asset until substantially all activities n ecessary to bring the asset to its 
intended use or sale have been completed.  

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific 
borrowings prior to the occurrence of eligible capital expenditures is 
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.  

Except for the above, all other borrowing costs are recognized as 
profit  or loss in the period in which they are incurred.  

(15)  Employee benefits  
1.  Short-term employee benefits  

Liabilities related to short -term employee benefits  are measured 
at undiscounted amounts expected to be paid in exchange for employee 
services.  

2.  Post-employment benefits  
The retirement benefits of the defined contribution retirement  

plan are recognized as expenses during the service period of the 
employees.  

The defined benefit cost  (including service cost , net interest  and 
premeasurement  amount) of the defined benefit retirement plan is 
actuarially calculated using the projected unit  benefit  method. Service 
costs (including current service costs) and net  inte rest  on net  defined 
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benefit liabilities (assets) are recognized as employee benefit  
expenses when incurred. The premeasurement  amount (including 
changes in actuarial profit and loss and return on project assets after 
deducting interest) is  recognized in ot her comprehensive profit  or loss 
and included in retained earnings when it occurs,  and will  not be 
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.  

The net defined benefit liability (asset) is  the shortfall (residual)  
of contributions from defined benefit retirement plans. Net defined 
benefit assets cannot exceed the present value of refunding 
contributions from the plan or reducing future contributions.  

(16)  Share-based payment  
The equity delivery share-based payment given to employees by the 

consolidated company is based on the fair value of the equity instrument 
on the date of grant and the best estimated quantity expected to be 
acquired, and the expense is recognized on a straight -line basis during the 
vesting period, and the capital reserve - share Basic benefits. If  it is 
immediately vested on the grant date, it  shall be fully recognized as an 
expense on the grant date. When the merged company handles cash capital 
increase and retains employees to subscribe,  the date of notification to the 
employees shall be the date of payment.  

The combined company revises the estimated number of expected 
vested equity instruments on each balance sheet date.  If  there is a revision 
to the original  estimated quantity,  the affected number is recognized as 
profit  or loss, so that  the accumulated expenses reflect  the revised 
estimate, and the capital reserve -share-based payment is adjusted 
accordingly.  

(17)  Income tax 
Income tax expense is the sum of current income tax and deferred 

income tax.  
1.  Current income tax  

The merged company determines the current income (loss) in 
accordance with the laws and regulations formulated by each income 
tax reporting jurisdiction,  and calculates the payable (recoverable) 
income tax accordingly.  

Income tax on the undistributed earnings calculated in accordance 
with the provisions of the Income Tax Law of the Republic of China 
is recognized in the year of resolution of the shareholders '  meeting.  

In the previous year shall be included in the current income tax.  
2.  Deferred income tax  

Deferred income tax is calculated based on the temporary 
difference between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities on the 
books and the tax basis for calculating taxable income.  

Deferred income tax liabilities are generally recognized for al l  
taxable temporary differences, while deferred income tax assets are 
recognized when it  is probable that  taxable income can be used to 
deduct temporary differences and loss deductions. Confirmed when 
used.  

Taxable temporary differences related to investment subsidi aries,  
affil iated enterprises and joint agreements are all  recognized as  
deferred income tax l iabil ities,  but if the merged company can control  
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the t iming of the reversal of the temporary difference, and the 
temporary difference is likely to be in the fore seeable future Except 
for those whose future will not return. Deductible temporary 
differences related to such investments are recognized as deferred 
income tax only to the extent that it  is probable that  there will be 
sufficient taxable income to realize the temporary differences and that  
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future assets.  

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is  reviewed at each 
balance sheet date and is reduced for those assets for which it is no 
longer probable that  suff icient taxable income will be available to 
recover all or part  of the asset.  Those that have not been recognized 
as deferred income tax assets are also re -examined on each balance 
sheet date, and for those that are likely to generate taxable income in 
the future to recover all  or part of the assets, the book amount is  
increased.  

The tax rates expected to be settled or assets realized in the 
current period. The tax rates are based on the tax rates and tax laws 
that  have been enacted or substantively enacted on the balance sheet  
date.  The measurement of deferred tax liabil ities and assets reflects 
the tax consequences arising from the manner in which the 
consolidated company expects to recover or pay off the carrying 
amounts of its  assets and liabilities at th e balance sheet date.  

3.  Current and deferred income tax  
Current and deferred income taxes are recognized in profit  or loss,  

except that current and deferred income taxes related to items 
recognized in other comprehensive profit or loss or directly in equ ity 
are recognized in other comprehensive profit  or loss or directly in  
equity,  respectively.  

 
5.   Major sources of uncertainty in major accounting judgments, estimates 

and assumptions  
When the merged company adopts accounting policies, the management 

must make relevant judgments,  estimates and assumptions based on historical  
experience and other relevant factors for those that are not easy to obtain 
relevant information from other sources. Actual results may differ from 
estimates.  

The merged company takes  into consideration the possible impact of 
inflation and market interest rate fluctuations on major accounting estimates 
such as cash flow estimation, growth rate, discount rate, and profitability.  
The management will  continue to review the estimates and b asic assumptions.  
If  the estimated If the revision affects only the current period, it  is  recognized 
in the period of revision. If revisions to accounting estimates affect  both 
current and future periods, they are recognized in the revision's current and 
future periods.  

 
6.  Cash and cash equivalents  
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  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
Cash on hand and working capital    $  1,178    $  1,118 
Bank Check and Demand Deposit     464,362     420,588 
Cash equivalent (investment with 

original maturity within 3 
months) 

 

   
Bank fixed deposit     -     44,199 

    $ 465,540    $ 465,905 
 
Bank deposits on the balance sheet date is as follows:  

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
Bank demand deposit  0.25 % 1.05 %  0.01 % 0.35% 
Time deposit  -  2.03 % 

 
7.  Financial  instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss  

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
Financial assets - current     
Mandatory fair  

value through profit or loss     
Non-derivative financial assets     
- fund beneficiary certificate    $  2,494    $  3,081 

 
8.  Financial   assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive 

income 
Equity instrument investment  

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
Non-current     
Foreign investment     
Unlisted (counter) stocks    $  2,640    $  2,640 

 
The merged company invests for medium to long -term strategic purposes 

and expects to make profits through long-term investments.  The management 
of the merged company believes that  if the short -term fair value fluctuations 
of these investments are included in profit or loss,  it  is  inconsistent with the 
aforementioned long-term investment plan, so they choose to designate these 
investments as measured at  fair value through other comprehensive income.  

 
9.  Financial assets measured at cost after amortizati on 

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
flow     
original maturity over 3 months (1)    $  57,740    $  63,654 
Pledge Certificate of Deposit (2)     19,204     23,336 
Reimbursement account (3)     -     6,001 
    $  76,944    $  92,991 
No flow move     
Time deposit with original maturity over 1 

year (1)    $ 176,320    $ 173,760 
Pledge Certificate of Deposit (2)     23,791     23,454 
Reimbursement account (3)     -     2,001 
    $  200,111    $ 199,215 
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(1)  As of December 31, 2011 and 2011,  the interest rate ranges for time 

deposits with an original maturity of more than 3 months are 1.44 % to 
4.125% and 0.815% to 4.263 % per annum respectively.  

(2)  As of December 31, 2011 and 2011, the interest  rate ranges for pledged 
certificates of depos it are 0.48% to 3.864% and 0.12% to 3.864 % per 
annum respectively.  

(3)  As of December 31, 2011, the interest  rate of the reserve account is 0.01 
% per annum. 

(4)  For information on the pledge of financial  assets measured at cost  after 
amortization, please refer to Note 31.  

 
10.  Notes receivable, accounts receivable,  other receivables and collections  
 

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
bill receivable     
Measured at amortized cost     
total book amount    $  24,658      $38,207 

Less: Allowance for losses     -     - 
    $  24,658    $  38,207 
Accounts receivable     
Measured at amortized cost     
total book amount    $ 377,800     $495,961 

Less: Allowance for losses   (  222 )   (  1,142 ) 
    $ 377,578    $ 494,819 
     
Accounts receivable - related 
parties     
Measured at amortized cost     
total book amount    $  4,607    $  9,286 

Less: Allowance for losses   (  2 )   (  67 ) 
    $  4,605    $  9,219 
other receivables     
income receivable    $  9,401    $  18,895 
Other receivables - other     22,339     22,146 
Less: Allowance for doubtful 
debts   (  17,244 )   (  17,124 ) 
    $  14,496    $  23,917  
Collection     
Measured at amortized cost     

total book amount    $  752    $     641 
Less: Allowance for doubtful 

debts   (  752 )   (  641 ) 
    $  -    $  - 

 
(1)  Accounts receivable  

The average credit period of the merged company for commodity sales 
is 30 to 60 days.  The policy adopted by the merged company is to only 
conduct transactions with objects whose ra tings are equivalent to and 
above the investment grade (included), and to obtain sufficient guarantees 
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under necessary circumstances to reduce the risk of financial  losses due 
to default . Credit rating information is based on the ratings of major 
customers by the Merged Company using other publicly available 
financial information and historical transaction records. The merged 
company continuously monitors the credit  ratings of credit exposure and 
counterparties,  and distributes the total  transaction amount to different 
customers with qualified credit ratings,  and manages credit exposure 
through the counterparty credit limit  reviewed and approved by the 
management every year.  

In order to mitigate credit risk, the management of the merged 
company assigned a dedicated team to be responsible for the determination 
of credit  line, credit approval and other monitoring procedures to ensure 
that  appropriate actions have been taken to recover overdue receivables. 
In addition, the merged company will review the recovera ble amount of 
receivables one by one on the balance sheet date to ensure that  
unrecoverable receivables have been appropriately derogated. 
Accordingly,  the management of the Company believes that the credit risk 
of the merged company has been significantly  reduced.  

The merged company recognizes the allowance loss of accounts 
receivable according to the expected credit  loss during the existence 
period. The expected credit loss during the duration is calculated using 
the provision matrix,  which considers the customer's past default record, 
current financial situation, and industrial economic situation,  as well as 
GDP forecast and industry outlook. As the credit loss historical experience 
of the merged company shows that there is no significant difference in th e 
loss patterns of different customer groups, the provision matrix does not 
further distinguish customer groups, and only sets the expected credit loss 
rate based on the aging days of notes receivable and accounts receivable.  

If  there is evidence that the counterparty is facing serious financial  
difficulties and the merged company cannot reasonably expect the 
recoverable amount, for example, the counterparty is in liquidation or the 
debt has been overdue for more than 365 days, the merged company will  
directly reclassify the collection and continue to pursue activities. The 
recovered amount is  writ ten off against the relevant collection.  

The consolidated company measures the allowance loss of notes 
receivable and accounts receivable according to the reserve matrix as 
follows:  
Bill  receivable 
December 31, 2022 

  1 120 days  121 180 days  181 days  Total 
Expected credit loss 
rate  

 
0%             0%  

 
-   

Total book amount    $  24,386    $  272    $  -    $  24,658 
Expected credit 

losses during the 
lifetime ) 
     -     -     -     - 

Amortized cost    $  24,386    $  272    $  -    $  24,658 
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December 31, 2021 

  1 120 days  121 180 days  181 days  Total 
Expected credit loss 
rate  

 
0%             0%  

 
-   

Total book amount    $  37,749    $  458    $  -    $  38,207 
Expected credit 

losses during the 
lifetime ) 
     -     -     -     - 

Amortized cost    $  37,749    $  458    $  -    $  38,207 
 
 
 

Accounts receivable  
December 31, 2022 
 

  1 120 days  121~180 days  180~270 days  271 days  Total 
Expected credit loss 
rate  0% 0.04 %  0% 0.48 %  0% 5.63 %  12.28%   

Total book amount    $ 362,754    $  17,971    $  1,090    $  592    $ 382,407 
Expected credit 

losses during the 
lifetime ) 

  (      71)   (      47 )   (      35)   (      71)   (    224) 

Amortized cost    $ 362,683    $  17,924    $  1,055    $  521    $ 382,183 
 

December 31, 2021 
  1 120 days  121~180 days  180~270 days  271 days  Total 

Expected credit 
loss rate  

0% 0.32 %  0% 3.42 %  0% 22.94 %  100 %   

Total book amount    $  484,165    $  20,253    $  789    $  40    $  505,247 
Expected credit 

losses during the 
lifetime )   (    539)   (    473)   (    157)   (    40)   (   1,209) 

Amortized cost    $  483,626    $  19,780    $  632    $  -    $  504,038 
 

Changes in the allowance for losses on accounts receivable are as 
follows:  

  2022  2021 
Balance at the beginning of the year    $  1,209   $   128 
Add: provision for impairment losses in the 
current year 

 
   -     961 

Add: Reclassification transferred in this year     -     130 
Less: Reversal impairment loss in the current 

period 
 

(  651)     - 
Less: Reclassified and transferred out in the 

current period 
 

(  362)     - 
Foreign currency translation difference     28    ( 10) 
Year-end balance    $  224    $  1,209 
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(2)  Notes receivable  
There is  no change in the allowance for doubtful debts for 2022 and 

2021 notes receivable.  
(3)  Other receivables  

Changes in allowance for bad debts of other receivables are a s follows:  
  2022  2021 
Balance at the beginning of the year    $  17,124    $  17,185 
Foreign currency translation 

difference     120   (  61) 
Year-end balance    $  17,244    $  17,124 

 
(4)  Collection 

Changes in allowance for bad debts of collection s are as follows:  
 

  2022  2021 
Balance at the beginning of the year    $  641    $    777 
Add: Reclassified and transferred in this 

period     362     -  
Less: Reclassified and transferred out in 

the current period     -    (  130) 
Less: Actual write-offs for the year   (  260)     -  
Foreign currency translation difference     9    (  6) 
Year-end balance    $  752    $  64 1 

 
 
11.   Inventory 

  
December 31, 

2022  
December 31, 

2021 
commodity    $  31,925    $    36,693 
manufactures     101,102     72,108 
Half finished product     13,676     13,960 
WIP     837     869 
raw material     59,816     59,049 
Raw materials in transit     -     1,616 
    $ 207,356    $ 184,295 

 
The nature of cost of goods sold is as follows:  

  2022  2021 
Cost of inventories sold    $ 3,362,261    $3,669,115 
Inventory depreciation and 

sluggish recovery benefits 
 

 (  2,636 ) 
 

 (  21,409 ) 
    $ 3,359,625    $ 3,647,706 
 

The increase in the net realizable value of inventories was due to the 
sale and reuse of slow-moving inventories.  

 
12.  Subsidiaries  

(1) Subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial report  
The entit ies preparing this consolidated financial  report  are as follows:  
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Proportion of 

Ownership (%)   

Investor  Investee  Nature of Activities  

2022 
Decem
ber 31  

2021 
Decem
ber 31  

Rema
rk 

AMIA CO., 
LTD. 

 AMIA (HUIYANG) CO., LTD.  Processing, 
manufacturing, 
trading and recycling 
of various industrial 
chemicals 

 100%  100%  - 

  PERSEE CHEMICAL CO., 
LTD. (Hereinafter referred to 
as PERSEE Company) 

 Processing, 
manufacturing, 
trading and recycling 
of various industrial 
chemicals 

 100%  100%  - 

  YIO-YEN ENTERPRISE CO., 
LTD. (Hereinafter referred to 
as YIO-YEN Company) 

 

 Operating holding 
business 

 100%  100%  - 

  BARKO INDUSTRIES CO., 
LTD. (Hereinafter referred to 
as BARKO Company) 

 

 Waste recycling, etc.  100%  100%  - 

  HOYA MAX 
INTERNATIONAL 
CO.,LTD. (Hereinafter 
referred to as HOYA 
Company) 

 

 Operating holding 
business 

 100%  100%  - 

YIO-YEN 
ENTERPR
ISE CO., 
LTD 

 GOLD PARTNER 
ENTERPRISES 
(KUNSHAN) CO., LTD. 
(Hereinafter referred to as 
GOLD (KUNSHAN) 
Company) 

 

 Processing, 
manufacturing, 
trading and recycling 
of various industrial 
chemicals 

 100%  100%  - 

HOYA MAX 
INTERNA
TIONAL 
CO.,LTD. 

 ALLWIN STAR 
INTERNATIONAL CO., 
LTD. (Hereinafter referred to 
as ALLWIN Company) 

 Operating holding 
business 

 100%  100%  - 

 
Remark:  
As of December 31, 2022, the investment relationship and 

shareholding ratio of the Company and its  subsidiaries and the invested 
companies that  have significant influence are shown in  the following 
chart:  
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Hereinafter,  the Company and the above-mentioned investee 
companies included in the consolidated financial  statements are 
collectively referred to as the consolidated company.  

(2)  Other information  
On June 10, 2022, the board of directors of YIO-YEN Company 

decided to convert the surplus into capital increase, and the additional 
cost  of issuing new shares was NT$12  thousand, which was used as a 
deduction of retained earnings. For the above case of capital increase from 
surplus, the capital increase base date was June 16,  2022,  and the change 
registration was completed on July 29, 2022.  

 
13.  Investments using the equity method  

Invest  in affiliated companies  

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
Individually insignificant affiliated 

enterprises    $  28,074    $  27,802 
 

Aggregate information of individually insignificant affi liated companies  
 
  2022  2021 
Shares of the merged company     
Net profit ( loss ) for the year    $  7,292    $  12,093 

Other comprehensive income    3 99    (  99 ) 
Total comprehensive profit and loss    $  7,691    $  11,994 

 
The profit and loss and other comprehensive profit and loss shares of  

affil iated enterprises using the equity method are recognized based on the  
financial reports of each affil iated enterprise audited by accountants for the 
same period.  

 

PERSEE CHEMICAL CO., LTD. 
capital amount NT$78, 600 

thousand 

100% 100% 100% 100% 

AMIA CO., LTD. 
capital amount NT$705, 180 thousand 

HOYA MAX 
INTERNATIONAL CO., LTD 

capital amount USD810 
thousand 

NT$27,936 thousand  

BARKO INDUSTRIES CO., 
LTD. 

capital amount NT$15, 000 
thousand 

YIO-YEN ENTERPRISE CO., 
LTD. 

capital amount NT$555, 700 
thousand 

AMIA (HUIYANG) CO., 
LTD. 

capital amount USD1, 200 
thousand 

ALLWIN STAR 
INTERNATIONAL CO., LTD 

capital amount USD810 
thousand 

NT$27,933 thousand  

GOLD PARTNER 
ENTERPRISES (KUNSHAN) 

CO., LTD. 
capital amount USD3,400 

thousand
RMB26,316thousand  

Ever-Precise Recycle Company 
capital amount USD2, 100 

thousand 
RMB13,014 thousand  

100% 

30% 

100% 

100% 
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14.  Real estate, plant and equipment  

  Own Land  Building  
Mechanical 
Equipment  

Transportati
on 

Equipment  
Other 

Devices  Total 
cost             
January 1,2022 

Balance    $ 535,492    $ 382,293    $ 363,049    $ 101,369    $ 283,573    $ 1,665,776 
increase     605,800     4,000     12,608     4,601     12,092     639,101 
punishment     -     -    (   2,437 )   (   3,062 )   (  1,489)   (   6,988) 
rearrange     -     -     1,406     -     -     1,406 
net exchange 
difference     -     2,408      882      265      1,679      5,234  
December 31, 2022 
Balance    $ 1,141,292    $ 388,701    $ 375,508    $ 103,173    $ 295,855    $ 2,304,529 
             
accumulated 
depreciation 

 
           

January 1,2022 
Balance    $  -    $ 258,998    $ 288,432    $ 69,836    $ 228,000    $ 845,266 
punishment     -     -    (  2,502)   (  3,012)   (   1,372)   (   6,886) 
Depreciation 
expense 

 
   -     14,600     22,867     11,189     25,081     73,737 

net exchange 
difference 

 
   -     1,420      602      122      1,051      3,195  

December 31, 2022 
Balance 

 
  $  -    $ 275,018    $ 309,399    $ 78,135    $ 252,760    $ 915,312 

             
December 31, 2022 
Net 

 
  $ 1,141,292    $ 113,683    $ 66,109    $ 25,038    $ 43,095    $ 1,389,217 

             
 

 
  Own Land  Building  

Mechanical 
Equipment  

Transportati
on 

Equipment  
Other 

Devices  Total 
cost             
January 1,2021 
Balance  

  $ 
535,492  

  $ 
382,673    $  507,094    $  86,844  

  $ 
301,961    $1,814,064 

increase     -     1,590     25,215     15,550     27,149     69,504 
punishment     -   (    729)     (175,617 )   (      924)   (   52,196 )   (  229,466 ) 
rearrange     -     -     6,725     -     7,341     14,066 
net exchange 
difference     -   (   1,241 )   (     368)   (     101)   (     682)   (    2,392 ) 
December 31, 2021 
Balance    $ 535,492    $ 382,293    $ 363,049    $ 101,369    $ 283,573    $ 1,665,776 
             
accumulated 
depreciation 

 
           

January 1,2021 
Balance    $-  

  $ 
246,595    $  436,176  

  $ 
60,623  

  $ 
248,534    $  991,928 

punishment     -   (   729)   ( 174,382)   (    924)   (   51,967)   ( 228,002) 
Depreciation 
expense 

 
   -     13,815     26,942     10,196     31,921     82,874 

net exchange 
difference 

 
   -   (     683)   (   304)   (    59)   (   488)   (   1,534) 

December 31, 2021 
Balance 

 
  $  -    $ 258,998    $ 288,432    $ 69,836    $ 228,000    $ 845,266 

             
December 31, 2021 
Net 

 
  $ 535,492    $ 123,295    $ 74,617    $ 31,533    $ 55,573    $ 820,510 
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Depreciation expense is provided on a straight -line basis over the 

following useful years:  
Building  5 to 50 years 
Mechanical equipment  2 to 11 years 
Transportation equipment  3 to 6 years 
Other devices  3 to 10 years 

 
Self-used real estate, plant and equipment set  as loan guarantee,  please 

refer to Note 31.  
 
15.  Lease agreement 

(1)  Right-of-use assets  
  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
Carrying amount of right-of-

use asset 
 

   
Land    $  10,705    $   10,858 
Building     24,937     48,687 
Transportation Equipment     1,986     51 

    $  37,628    $  59,596 
 
  2022  2021 
Addition of right-of-use assets    $  2,466    $  56,107 
Depreciation expense on right-

of-use assets 
 

 
 

 
Land    $  313    $309 
Building     21,227     31,93 6 
Transportation Equipment     531     38 2 

    $  22,071    $  32,627 
(2)  Lease liabilities  

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
Carrying amount of the lease 
liability   

 
 

Flow    $  18,847    $  21,867 
No flow move    $  7,287    $  24,207 

 
The discount rate range for the lease liability is as follows:  

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
building  1.94%  1.94 % 
Transportation Equipment  1.4 0%  1.94 % 
 

(3)  Important leasing activities and terms  
The merged company leases certain transportation equipment for 

operational use,  and the lease period is 2 to 3 years.  Upon the expiry of 
the lease period, these lease agreements  have no clauses for renewal or 
right to purchase.  

Right-of-use assets -  land refers to the land-use rights of 
subsidiaries located in Mainland China. The land at the original site of 
the subsidiary GOLD PARTNER ENTERPRISES (KUNSHAN) CO., 
LTD. was acquired at an annual cost  of RMB 3,554  thousand. The above-
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mentioned land use right has already obtained the state -owned land use 
right certificate of the People's Republic of China, the economic benefit  
period is 50 years, and the use right expires in March 2057 . 

The merged company also leases certain buildings for factory use,  and 
the lease period is 2 to 3 years. When the lease period ends, the merging 
company has no preferential right to purchase the leased building, and it  
is agreed that the merging company shall not sublease or transfer al l or 
part of the leased object without the consent of the lessor.  

When the merged company leases machinery and equipment,  the lease 
starts when the equipment is installed and accepted by both parties. The 
lease period of the  contract is 1 year,  and the monthly rental fee is  NT$500  
thousand. After the lease expires,  the merged company can choose to 
purchase the equipment and can fully discount the rental fee paid during 
the lease period to the purchase amount. The merged compa ny terminated 
the original  lease with the manufacturer in January 2012, and signed a 
separate equipment purchase contract.  

(4)  Other leasing information  
  2022  2021 
Short-term rental fee    $  2,340    $  2,334 
Low-value asset rental expenses    $  490     $  369  
Total cash (outflows) from leases   ( $ 22,832 )   ( $ 33,939 ) 

 
The merged company chooses to apply the recognition exemption to 

the building buildings that  qualify for short -term leases, and does not 
recognize the relevant right -of-use assets and lease liabilities for these 
leases.  

 
16. Other assets  

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
Flow     
Other assets     

Tax refund receivable    $  8,015    $    11,125 
Prepaid fee     14,887     11,425 
Advance payment     11,796     11,676 
Input tax     425     957 
Other     258     302 
    $  35,381    $  35,485 

 
17.  Borrowing 

(1)  Short-term loans  
  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
Guaranteed loans (Note 31 )     
Bank loan    $ 130,000    $  290,500 
unsecured borrowing     
line of credit borrowing     40,000     85,000  

   $ 170,000    $ 375,500 
 

The interest rates of bank revolving loans will  be 1.65% to 1.87% and 
1.40% to 1.58% on December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.  
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(2)  Short-term notes payable  
  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
Commercial paper payable    $  -    $  30,000 

 
The outstanding short -term notes payable are as follows:  

December 31, 2021 
Guarantee / 
Acceptance 

Agency  face value  
discount 
amount  

carrying 
amount  

Interest 
rate range  

Collateral 
name  

Collateral 
carrying 
amount 

Commercial 
paper payable             

Mega Coupons    $ 30,000    $  -    $ 30,000  0.85%  none    $  - 
 

The commercial notes payable of the merged company are payable 
short-term bills  with no interest  paid.  

The impact is  not significant, so it  is  measured by the original  face 
value.  

 
(3)  Long-term loans  

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
Guaranteed loans (Note 31 )     
Bank loan    $ 533,000    $- 
unsecured borrowing     
Bank loan     -     36,285 
Minus: listed as part due within 1 

year   (  16,680 )   (  29,922 ) 
Long term loan    $ 516,320    $  6,363 

 
The guaranteed loan is guaranteed by the consolidated company's 

certificate of deposit , self -owned land and buildings (see Note 31). As of 
December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the effective annual interest  
rate is  1.65% to 2.025% and 1.73% to 1.88%. In 2022, the merged company 
obtained a bank loan of NT$682,000 thousand from New Mobile. The loan 
interest  rate is  1.65%~2.025%, divided into 3 years.  The amo unt allocated 
this time is needed to raise operating turnover.  

The consolidated company's borrowings include:  
 

 Expiry 
Date  Major Terms  

Effective 
Interest 

Rate 
 December 31, 

2022  December 
31, 2021 

floating 
rate 
borrowin
g 

 2023/9/25  O-bank       
   It is a loan to raise funds needed for medium-

term operating turnover, with a loan amount 
of NT$50,000 thousand and an interest rate 
of 1.88 %. The loan period is from September 
25, 2020 to September 25, 2023. Since 
March 15, 2022, NT$4,000 thousand will be 
repaid quarterly, which has been fully repaid 
on March 16, 2022. 

 1.88 %  $  -    $ 18,000 

  2023/3/12  Changhua Commercial Bank       
    It is a loan to raise funds needed for medium-

term operating turnover, with a loan amount 
of NT$10,000 thousand and an interest rate 
of 1.73%. During the loan period from March 
12, 2020 to March 12, 2023, interest is 

 1.75%  -     4,167 
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 Expiry 
Date  Major Terms  

Effective 
Interest 

Rate 
 December 31, 

2022  December 
31, 2021 

deducted every month. Starting from the loan 
date, each month is regarded as one 
installment, which is divided into 36 
installments, and the principal of NT$278 
thousand is amortized on average on the 12th 
of each month as scheduled, and has been 
fully repaid on March 17, 2022. 

  2023/3/12  Changhua Commercial Bank       
    It is a loan to raise funds needed for medium-

term operating turnover, with a loan amount 
of NT$30,000 thousand and an interest rate 
of 1.73%. During the loan period from June 
5, 2020 to March 12, 2023, the interest will 
be deducted every month. Starting from the 
loan date, each month is regarded as one 
installment, which is divided into 34 
installments. The principal is repaid on 
average on the 5th of each month, NT$882 
thousand, and has been fully repaid on March 
17, 2022. 

 1.73%  -     14,118 

  2029/2/11  Mega Commercial Bank       
    It is a loan to raise funds needed for medium-

term operating turnover, with a loan amount 
of NT$400,000 thousand and an interest rate 
of 2.025%. During the loan period from 
February 11, 2022 to February 11, 2029, the 
interest will be deducted every month. 
Starting from February 11, 2023, every six 
months will be amortized in 12 installments. 
NT$149,000 thousand has been repaid in 
advance on September 22, 2022. 

 2.025%  51,000     - 

  2029/2/11  Mega Commercial Bank       
    It is a loan to raise funds needed for medium-

term operating turnover, with a loan amount 
of NT$400,000 thousand and an interest rate 
of 2.025%. During the loan period from 
December 2, 2022 to February 11, 2029, the 
interest will be deducted every month. 
Starting from February 11, 2023, every six 
months is a period, and amortized in 12 
installments. 

 2.025%  88,000     - 

  2042/3/3  first commercial bank       
    It is a loan to raise the funds needed for 

medium-term operating turnover. The loan 
amount is NT$394,000,000. The interest rate 
for the first 3 years is 1.15%, and the annual 
interest rate for the next 17 years is 1.25%. 
Due to the interest rate increase, the interest 
rate in 2022 will be 1.65%. During the loan 
period from March 3, 2022 to March 3, 
2042, the interest will be deducted every 
month. Starting from the loan date, each 
month is regarded as one period, which is 
divided into 240 periods in total. The first 3 
years are the grace period, and the monthly 
principal and interest are evenly amortized 
from April 3, 2025. 

 1.65%   394,000 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

_________ 

    - 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  _________ 
 

        533,000     36,285 
    Less: portion due within 1 year    (  16,680 )  (29,922) 
    Long term loan    $ 516,320    $ 6,363 

 
Please refer to Note 31 for the collateral guarantee of the above -

mentioned bank loans.  
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18.  Notes payable and accounts payable  

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
Notes payable     
Occurred due to business - non-

related person    $  805    $  689 
     
accounts payable     
Occurred due to business - non-

related person    $ 261,800    $ 409,526 
 

The average credit period for the purchase of some commodities is  1 to 
3 months,  and no interest  is added to accounts payable. The merged company 
has a financial  risk management policy to ensure that all  payables are repaid 
within the pre-agreed credit  period.  

 
19.  Other Liabilities  

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
Flow     
Other payables     
Payable salary and bonus    $  37,617    $  41,194 
Leave payable     6,433     5,629 
Premium payable     24,309     25,375 
Employee bonuses payable     8,560     16,507 
Directors' remuneration payable     2,850     9,629 
Interest payable     723     256 
Payable for equipment     8,758     8,345 
Output tax     161     1,004 
Taxes payable     249     834 
Other payable expenses     72,988     94,214 
    $ 162,648    $ 2 02,987 
     
Other liabilities     
Temporary payment    $  5,179    $  5,057 
Collection     1,263     1,250 
    $  6,442    $  6,307 

 
20.  Provision for l iabilities  

  
December 31 , 

2022  
December 31 , 

2021 
Non-current     
Decommissioning costs    $  5,133    $  5,047 

 
The decommissioning cost liability provision is the decommissioning 

liability provision arising from the dismantling, removal of related equipment 
and restoration of i ts location. The amount is measured by the estimated 
discounted value of the cash flow of the expected settlement obligation, and 
is properly evaluated at  the end of the reporting period and Adjustment.  

 
21.  Post-employment benefit plan  
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(1)  Determining the appropriation plan  
Among the merged companies,  GOLD (KUNSHAN) Company,  AMIA 

(HUIYANG) CO., LTD. , HOYA Company and ALLWIN Company have 
not yet formulated employee retirement methods, and the local 
government laws have not st ipulated mandatory employee retirement 
methods.  

of our company, PERSEE Company, YIO-YEN Company and BARKO 
Company applicable to the "Labor Pension Act" in the merged company is 
a defined contribution retirement plan managed by the government, based 
on the employee's monthly salary of 6 % Transfer the pension to the 
personal  special account of the Labor Insurance Bureau.  

(2)  Defined benefit plan  
The pension system of our company and PERSEE Company in the 

merged company is a defined benefit retirement plan managed by the 
government in accordance with the "Labor Standards Law"  of our country.  
The payment of employee pensions is  calculated based on the years of 
service and the average salary of the six months before the approved 
retirement date. These companies allocate 2% of the total monthly salary 
of employees to the employee  retirement fund, and submit i t  to the Labor 
Retirement Reserve Supervision Committee to deposit  it  in the special 
account of the Bank of Taiwan in the name of the committee. Before the 
end of the year, if  the estimated balance in the special account is  
insufficient, the payment will be made for those workers who are 
estimated to meet the retirement requirements within the year,  the 
difference will be allocated in one lump sum before the end of March of 
the following year.  The special  account is  managed by the Labor Fund 
Utilization Bureau of the Ministry of Labor,  and the merged company has 
no right to influence the investment management strategy.  

The amounts of defined benefit plans included in the consolidated 
balance sheet are as follows:  
 
  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
Determining the Present Value 

of Benefit Obligations 
 

  $  61,308    $  71,473 
Fair value of project assets   (  29,975 )   (  30,129 ) 
Net defined benefit liability    $  31,333    $  41,344 

 
Changes in net defined benefit  liabili ties are as follows:  

  

Determining  
the Present Value of 
Benefit Obligations  

Fair value of 
project assets 

  
Net defined benefit 

liability 
January 1,2021    $  71,148   ( $  26,908 )    $  44,240 
service cost       
current service cost     194     -     194 
Interest Expense (Income)     266   (        106 )     160 
recognized in profit or loss     460   (  106 )     354 
premeasurement number       
Return on project assets (except the 

amount included in net interest)     -   (  355 )   (  355 ) 
Actuarial loss - change in 

demographic assumptions     1,934     -     1,934 
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Determining  
the Present Value of 
Benefit Obligations  

Fair value of 
project assets 

  
Net defined benefit 

liability 
Actuarial benefits - changes in 

financial assumptions   (  467)     -   (  467) 
Actuarial Benefit - Experience 

Adjustment   (  1,602)     -   (  1,602) 
recognized in other comprehensive 

income   (  135)   (  355)   (  490) 
employer appropriation     -   (  2,760)   (  2,760) 
December 31, 2021    $  71,473   ( $  30,12 9)    $  41,344 

 

  

Determining 
the Present Value of 
Benefit Obligations  

Fair value of project 
assets 

  
Net defined benefit 

liability 
January 1, 2022    $  71,473    ( $  30,129 )    $  41,344 
service cost       
current service cost     200      -     200 
Interest Expense (Income)     357    (  157 )     200 
recognized in profit or loss     557    (  157 )     400 
premeasurement number       
Return on project assets (except the 

amount included in net interest)     -   (  2,285 )   (  2,285 )  
Actuarial benefits - changes in 

financial assumptions   (  2,932 )     -   (  2,932 ) 
Actuarial Benefit - Experience 

Adjustment   (  2,434 )     -   (  2,434 ) 
recognized in other comprehensive 

income   (  5,366 )   (  2,285 )   (  7,651 ) 
employer appropriation     -   (  2,760)   (   2,760 ) 
welfare payment   (  5,356 )     5,356      -  
December 31, 2022    $  6 1,308    ( $  29,975 )    $  31,333  

 
The amount of defined benefit  plans recognized in profit  or loss is 

summarized by function as follows:  
  2022  2021 
Operating cost    $     130    $  117 
Promotional expenses     106     95 
Management costs     164     142 
    $  400    $  354 

 
The merged company is exposed to the following risks due to the 

pension system of the Labor Standards Act:  
1.  Investment risk: The Labor Fund Utilization Bureau of the Ministry of 

Labor invests labor pension funds  in domestic (foreign) equity 
securities, debt securities, and bank deposits through self -use and 
entrusted operation methods, but the planned assets of the merged 
company may be allocated The amount is calculated based on the local  
bank's 2-year fixed deposit interest  rate.  

2.  Interest rate risk: The decline in the interest  rate of government bonds 
will increase the present value of defined benefit obligations, but the 
debt investment return on project assets will also increase accordingly,  
and the impact  of the two on net defined benefit liabilit ies will  have a 
partial offset effect.  
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3.  Salary risk: The calculation of the present value of the determined 
benefit obligation refers to the future salary of the plan members.  An 
increase in plan member salarie s will therefore increase the present 
value of the defined benefit obligation.  
The present value of the confirmed benefit obligations of the merged 

company is calculated by a qualified actuary, and the major assumptions 
on the measurement date are as follows:  

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
Discount Rate  1.125 %  0.500 % 
Salary Expected Increase Rate  2.000 %  2.000 % 2.250 % 

 
If there are reasonably possible changes in major actuarial 

assumptions, and all  other assumptions remain unchanged,  the amount that 
will  increase (decrease) the present value of the defined benefit obligation 
is as follows:  

 
  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
Discount Rate     
0.25% increase   ( $    825 )   ( $  1,070 ) 
0.25% reduction    $  847    $  1,101 
     
Salary Expected Increase Rate     
0.25% increase    $  828    $  1,0 68 
0.25% reduction   ( $  810 )   ( $  1,0 43 ) 

 
Since the actuarial assumptions may be related to each other, the 

possibility of only a single assumption changing is unlikely,  so the above 
sensitivity analysis may not be able to reflect the actual changes in the 
present value of the defined benefit obligations.  

 
  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
Expected amount allocated within 1 

year 
 

  $  2,760    $  2,760 
Determining the average benefit 

obligation due period 
 3.5 years to 5.9 

years  
4.1 year to 6.4 

years 
 
22.  Rights and interests  

(1)  Common stock capital  
  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
Rated number of shares 

(thousand shares) 
 

   100,000     100,000 
Rated share capital    $ 1,000,000    $ 1,000,000 
Number of issued and fully 

paid shares (thousand 
shares) 

 

   70,518     62,899 
Issued share capital    $  705,180    $  628,990 
 

The issued ordinary shares have a par value of NT$10 each, and each 
share has one voting right and the right to receive dividends.  
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Among the rated share capital , 3,000  thousand shares are reserved for 
the issuance of warrant certificates, special shares with warrants, or 
corporate bonds with warrants for the exercise of stock options.  

The resolution of the board of directors of the Company on December 
30, 2021 approved the cash capital  increase to issue 7, 864 thousand new 
shares, with a par value of NT$10 per share, and retained 10% of the 
number of issued shares in accordance with the Company law, totaling 787 
thousand shares for employees Subscription, the subscription price per 
share is NT$40, and the remaining 7,077 thousand shares are used for 
public underwriting before the listing of the stock, and are handled by 
bidding auction (80%) and public subscription (20%) at the same time. 
The average transaction price of bidding auction is NT$47.77 per share.  
In addition, on February 24, 2011, the underwriting price for public 
subscription was set  at NT$40 per share.  The total  issuance amount was 
NT$358,540 thousand. The above-mentioned cash capital  increase case 
has been declared effective by the Taiwan Stock  Exchange on January 11, 
2011 with Taiwan Zheng Shang Y I ZI No. 1111800181, and March 9 of 
the same year was used as the capital increase base date,  and the change 
registration was carried out on May 2, 2022 Finish.  

On May 24, 2022, the board of directors resolved to cancel 245 
thousand treasury shares, and then completed the change registration on 
June 15, 2022.  

(2)  Capital  reserves  
  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
Can be used to make up losses, 

distribute cash or make 
capital contributions (a) 

 

   
Stock issue premium    $ 625,677    $   346,236 
Gain on disposal of assets     255     255 
    $ 625,932    $ 346,491 
 

(a) This kind of capital  reserve can be used to make up for losses,  and can 
also be used to distribute cash or allocate capital  when the Company 
has no losses. However, capitalization is limited to a certain percentage 
of paid-in capital every year.  

(3)  Retained earnings and dividend policy  
According to the surplus distribution policy of the Company's art icles 

of association, if  there is  a surplus in the annual final  accounts,  taxes 
should be paid first to make up for previous losses, and 10% should be set 
aside as the statutory surplus reserve, and the special surplus reserve 
should be withdrawn and reversed in accordance with law s and regulations. 
After accumulating,  if there is any surplus, the remaining surplus plus the 
accumulated undistributed surplus of the previous year shall  be regarded 
as distributable surplus. The board of directors shall  prepare a surplus 
distribution proposal and submit it  to the shareholders ' meeting for a 
resolution on the distribution of shareholder dividends. Please refer to 
Note 24 (7) Employee Remuneration and Director Remuneration for the 
employee and director remuneration distribution policy stip ulated in the 
Company's articles of association.  
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The Company is in the period of business growth, and the policy of 
dividend distribution depends on factors such as the Company's current 
and future investment environment, capital demand, securit ies market,  
domestic and foreign competition conditions, and capital  budget,  and 
takes into account shareholders ' interests, balanced dividends,  and the 
Company's financial  planning, etc. ,  each year according to the law, the 
board of directors prepares a distribution plan and submits it to the 
shareholders ' meeting. Distribution of shareholder dividends, of which 
cash dividends shall not be less than 20% of the total dividends, and the 
rest shall be distributed as stock dividends.  

The statutory surplus reserve shall  be appropriated until its  balance 
reaches the total paid-in share capital of the Company. The statutory 
surplus reserve can be used to make up for losses. When the Company has 
no losses,  the part of the statutory surplus reserve exceeding 25% of the 
total  paid-in amount can be distributed in cash in addition to being 
allocated to share capital .  

The Company held regular shareholders ' meetings on May 24, 20 22 
and July 7,  2021,  and passed resolutions on the distribution of surplus for 
2021 and 2020 as follows:  
  2022  2021 
Statutory surplus reserve    $  22,120    $  7,035  
special surplus reserve    $  3,972   ( $  7,819 ) 
cash dividend    $ 139,886    $  55,871  
Cash dividend per share (yuan)    $  2.0    $  0.9  

 
On February 22, 2023, the Company's board of directors proposed the 

profit  distribution plan for 2022 as follows:  
    Surplus Distribution Proposal 
Statutory surplus reserve      $  10,661 
special surplus reserve     ( $     8,422) 
cash dividend      $  69,943 
Cash dividend per share (yuan)      $  1.0 

 
2023 is yet to be resolved at  the general meeting of shareholders 

expected to be held on May 24, 2022.  
(4)  Treasury stocks 

Reason for withdrawal    
Transfer of shares to employees 

(thousand shares) 
Number of shares on January 1 , 2022       820 
Decrease this year     (  245 ) 
Number of shares on 1 February 31, 2022       575 
     
Number of shares on January 1 , 2021       820 
Number of shares on 1 February 31, 2021       820 

 

Buy back time  
Number of shares 
(thousand shares)  The amount  Deadline for transfer 

March 24 , 2020     575    $  11,675  March 23 , 2023 
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The treasury stocks held by the Company shall not be pledged in 
accordance with the provisions of the Company law, nor shall they be 
entit led to the distribution of dividends and voting rights.  

 
23.  Income 

  2022  2021 
Client contract revenue     

Merchandise sales revenue    $ 3,721,106    $ 4,203,950 
 

Contract balance 
  December 31,2022  December 31,2021  January 1,2021 
Accounts receivable (Note 10)    $  382,183    $  504,038    $  361,672 
Contract Liabilities       

Merchandising    $  3,164    $  1,483    $  7,285 
 

Changes in contract  l iabil ities are primarily attributable to differences in  
the timing of satisfaction of performance obligations and the timing of 
payment by customers.  

 
24.  Net profit before tax 

(1)  Interest income 
  2022  2021 
Bank savings    $  11,988    $  13,300 
Other     35     - 
    $  12,023    $  13,300 

 
(2)  Other income 

  2022  2021 
Dividend income    $  489    $  512 
Other     8,100     7,665 
    $  8,589    $  8,177 

(3)  Other benefits and (losses)  
  2022  2021 
Financial asset (loss) loss     

Mandatory financial assets at fair value 
through profit or loss   ( $  446 )    $  200 

Disposal of property, plant and equipment 
(loss)     3 32    (  634) 

Net foreign currency exchange (loss) loss     29,771    (  5,466) 
lease modification benefit    481      -  
other   (  130 )   (  244 ) 
    $  30,008    ( $  6,144 )  

(4)  Financial costs  
  2022  2021 
Bank loan interest   ($    11,099)   ($  8,529 ) 
Interest on the lease liability   (       600)   (  810 ) 
Interest on liability provision   (        86)   (  57 ) 
   ( $   11,785)   ( $  9,396 ) 

 
There was no interest capitalization in 20 22 and 2021. 
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(5)  Depreciation and amortization 
  2022  2021 
Summary of depreciation expense 

by function     
Operating cost    $   71,241    $  92,811 

Operating expenses     24,567     22,690 
    $  95,808    $  115,501 

(6)  Employee welfare expenses  
  2022  2021 
Post-employment benefits     
Confirm allocation plan    $     6,604    $     6,778 
Defined benefit plans (Note 21 )     400     354 
     7,00 4     7,132 
share based payment     1,732     - 
Other employee benefits     2 67,104     293,074 
Total employee benefit expenses    $ 275,840    $ 300,206 
     
Summary by function     
Operating cost    $  130,829    $  125,461 
Operating expenses     14 5,011     174,745 
    $ 275,840    $ 300,206 

 
(7)  Employee remuneration and director remuneration  

The Company allocates employee remuneration and director 
remuneration at a rate of 1% to 8% and no more than 5% of the pre -tax 
profit before deducting the distribution of employee and director 
remuneration in the current year.  

February 22, 2023 and March 8, 2022, the employee remuneration and 
director 's remuneration in 2022 and 2021 were respectively resolved by 
the board of directors as follows:  
Estimated ratio  
  2022  2021 
Employee compensation  6.01 %  5.98 % 
Director remuneration  2.00%  3.49% 
 
The amount  
  2022  2021 
  Cash  Cash 
Employee compensation    $  8,560    $  16,507 
Director remuneration     2,850     9,629 

 
If there is sti ll  a change in the amount after the annual consolidated 

financial report is  released, it will be treated as a change in accounting 
estimate and will be adjusted and recorded in the next year.  

There is  no difference between the actual distribution amount of 
employee remuneration and director 's remuneration in 2022 and 2021 and 
the recognized amount in the consolidated financial report of 2022 and 
2021.  
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For information on employee remuneration and director remuneration 
resolved by the Company's board of directors, please visit  the "Public 
Information Observatory" of the Taiwan Stock Exchange.  

(8)  Foreign currency exchange (gain) loss 
  2022  2021 
Total foreign currency exchange benefit    $ 41,107     $10,508  
Total foreign currency exchange ( loss )   (  11,336 )   (  15,974) 
Net ( loss ) loss    $  29,771    ( $  5,466) 

 
25. Income Tax 
 

(1)  Income tax expense recognized in profit or los s 
The main components of income tax expenses are as follows:  

  2022  2021 
Current income tax     
Produced this year  $30,088     $ 16,293  
Undistributed surplus tax     1,615   -  
Prior Year Adjustments   (  201 )     349  
     31,502      16,642  
Deferred income tax     
Produced this year     9,379      29,265  
Prior Year Adjustments     1,766      229  
     11,145      29,494  
Income tax expense recognized in profit 

or loss 
 

  $ 42,647     $ 46,136  
     

The adjustment of accounting income an d income tax expense is as 
follows:  

  2022  2021 
Net profit before tax    $ 142,439     $ 266,841 
Income tax expense calculated at the statutory 

tax rate on net profit before tax ( 20% ) 
 

  $ 28,488     $ 53,368  
Non-deductible expense losses     1      1,853  
tax-free income   (  1,372 )   (  2,459 ) 
Repatriation of Overseas Dividends     10,338   -  
Temporary Difference - Overseas Investment     1,853      1,942  
Undistributed Earnings Levy     1,615   -  
Unrecognized loss write-off     463    (  12,028 ) 
Impact of different tax rates on subsidiaries 

operating in other jurisdictions 
 

 

 (  304 )     2,882  
Adjustment of the current income tax expense 

of the previous year in the current year 
 

 (  201 )     34 9  
Adjustment of the deferred income tax expense 

in the previous year in the current year 
 

   1,766     229 
Income tax expense recognized in profit or loss    $  42,647    $  46,136 

 
 
 
 

- 45 -



 

 

(2)  Income tax recognized in other comprehensive profit  or loss  
  2022  2021 
Deferred income tax     
Generated in the current year     
- Conversion of foreign operating institutions   ( $  2,106 )    $  993 

 
(3)  Current income tax assets and liabilit ies  

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
Current income tax assets     
Tax refund receivable    $  6,320    $  4,500 
     
Current income tax liabilities     
income tax payable    $  25,879    $  - 

 
 
 
(4)  Deferred income tax assets and liabilities  

Changes in deferred tax assets and liabili ties are as follows:  
2022 

  
Initial 

balance  
Recognized in 
profit or loss  

Recognized in 
Other 

comprehensive 
income  

Year-end 
balance 

Deferred tax assets         
temporary difference         
Overseas Investment    $  4,836   ($  1,164 )    $  -    $  3,672  
Unrealized loss on inventory 

decline     5,049   (     529 )     -     4,520  
Unrealized benefits from 

transactions with 
subsidiaries     220     306      -     526  

Exchange difference of foreign 
operating institutions     10,350     -   (  2,106)     8,244  

Defined Benefit Retirement Plan     102   (      65 )     -     37  
Provision for 

Decommissioning 
Liabilities     -     583      -     583  

leave payable     909     164      -     1,073  
Allowance for bad debts     1,102     -     -     1,102  
     22,568   (     705)   (    2,106 )     19,757  
loss write-off     7,355   (    7,355)     -  -
    $  29,923   ( $  8,060 )   ($   2,106)    $ 19,757  
         
Deferred tax liabilities         
temporary difference         

Unrealized exchange gains 
and losses   ($     46 )  

  $        9 
     $  -   (  $37) 

Overseas Investment     -   (   2,687)     -   ( 2,687) 
Defined Benefit Retirement Plan   (    2,419 )   (     407)     -   ( 2,826) 
   (  $ 2,465 )   ( $  3,085)    $  -   ( $ 5,550) 
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2021 

  initial balance  
recognized in 
profit or loss  

recognized in 
Other 

comprehensive 
income  

Year-end 
balance 

Deferred tax assets         
temporary difference         
Overseas Investment    $  6,778   ($  1,942)    $  -    $  4,836 
Unrealized loss on inventory 

decline     9,257   (   4,208)     -     5,049 
Unrealized benefits from 

transactions with 
subsidiaries     120     100     -     220 

Exchange difference of foreign 
operating institutions     9,357     -     993     10,350 

Defined Benefit Retirement 
Plan     169   (      67)     -     102 

leave payable     1,063   (     154)     -     909 
Allowance for bad debts     1,102     -     -     1,102 
     27,846   (    6,271 )     993     22,568 
loss write-off     30,127   (   22,772 )     -     7,355 
    $  57,973   ( $ 29,043)    $  993    $  29,923 
         
Deferred tax liabilities         
temporary difference         

Unrealized exchange 
gains and losses   ($      10)   ($     36)    $  -   ($     46) 

Defined Benefit Retirement 
Plan   (     2,004)   (     415)     -   (     2,419) 

   ( $   2,014 )   ( $    451)    $  -   ( $   2,465) 
 
(5)  Unused loss deduction amount not recognized in the consolidated balance 

sheet as deferred income tax assets  
PERSEE CHEMICAL CO., LTD.  

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
Loss write-off     
2030 due    $  633    $  844 
2032 year due     1,137     - 
    $  1,770    $  844 
 

YIO-YEN ENTERPRISE CO., LTD.  
  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
Loss write-off     
2031 years due    $  -    $  1,013 
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BARKO INDUSTRIES CO., LTD.  
  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
loss write-off     
2022 due    $  -    $  975 
2023 due     838     838 
2024 due     582     582 
2025 due     613     613 
2026 due     451     451 
2027 due     194     194 
2028 due     165     165 
2029 due     169     1 69 
2030 due     163     163 
    $  3,175    $  4,150 

 
(6)  Relevant information on unused loss deduction  

As of December 31, 2022, PERSEE Company's loss deduction related 
information is as follows:  

Balance not yet deducted  Final deduction year 
  $  633  2030 
   1,137  2032 
  $  1,770   

 
As of December 31, 2022, the information related to the loss  

deduction of BARKO Company is as follows:  
Balance not yet deducted  Final deduction year 

  $  838  2023 
   582  2024 
   613  2025 
   451  2026 
   194  2027 
   165  2028 
   169  2029 
   163  2030 
  $  3,175    

 
(7)  Income tax verification si tuation  

The Company, PERSEE Company, YIO-YEN Company, and BARKO 
Company's profit -seeking enterprise income tax declarations except for 
2021, the declaration cases before 2020 have been approved by the tax 
collection agency.  

 
26. Earnings per share 

Unit:  Yuan per share  
  2022  2021 

Total Basic Earnings Per Share    $  1.46    $  3.56 
Total diluted earnings per share    $  1.45    $  3.51 
 
Earnings and weighted average number of ordinary shares used to 

calculate earnings per share are as fol lows: 
 

- 48 -



 

 

Net profit for the year  
  2022  2021 
Net income used to calculate basic 

earnings per share 
 

  $  99,792    $ 220,705 
Net income used to calculate diluted 

earnings per share 
 

  $  99,792    $ 220,705 
 
Number of shares  unit: thousand shares  
  2022  2021 
Weighted average number of common 

shares used to calculate basic earnings 
per share 

 

   68,496     62,079 
Effect of Dilutive Potential Ordinary 

Shares 
 

   
employee bonus     492     760 
Weighted average number of common 

shares used to calculate diluted 
earnings per share 

 

   68,988     62,839 
 
If the merged company can choose to issue employee remuneration in 

stock or cash, when calculating diluted earnings per share, it is assumed that  
the employee remuneration will be issued in the form of s tock, and when the 
potential common stock has a dilutive effect, i t  will be included in the 
weighted average number of outstanding shares to calculate Diluted earnings 
per share.  When calculating the diluted earnings per share before deciding on 
the number of shares issued for employee compensation in the next year, the 
dilutive effect of these potential  ordinary shares will  also continue to be 
considered.  

 
27.  Share-Based Payment Agreement  

Cash Capital Increase Retention Employee Subscription 
On December 30, 2021,  the Company's board of directors resolved to  

issue 7,864 thousand new shares through cash capital increase before the 
initial stock list ing. This cash capital increase project was approved and 
declared by the Taiwan Stock Exchange on January 11, 2022, and was 
resolved by the board of directors , with March 9 ,  20 22 as the capital increase 
base date .  

The reserved part  of the new shares issued by the above -mentioned cash 
capital increase is used as subscription by the Company's employees,  and 
February 24, 2022 is the day of giving.  

The relevant information of employee stock options is as follows:  
  2022 

Employee stock options 
 

Unit (thousand)  
Weighted average 

Execution price (yuan) 
Circulation at the beginning of the period     -    $- 
Give this period     787     40 
Exercise this period   (  787 )      
Out of circulation at the end of the period     -      
Executable at the end of the period     -      
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Of employee stock options granted 
in the current period (yuan) 

 
  $  2.2      

 
For employee stock options that will be executed in 2022, the weighted 

average exercise price on the execution date is  NT$40.  
The employee stock options granted by the Company use the Black-

Scholes evaluation model,  and the input values used in the evaluation model 
are as follows:  

 
Grant day share price      NT$ 41.96 
Execution price      NT$ 40.00 
Expected volatility      33.42% 
Expected duration      0.033 years 
Risk free rate      0. 35% 

 
The stock price on the date of giving is evaluated using the market 

method and estimated based on the stock price -to-book value ratio,  average 
price-to-earnings ratio, and stock price adjustment of listed companies in 
comparable domestic industries.  

The expected volatil ity is based on the average value of the annualized 
standard deviation calculated from the daily stock price returns of similar  
companies in the same industry in the past year.  

The remuneration cost recognized in 2022 is NT$1,732thousand.  
 
28.  Capital risk management  

The combined company conducts capital  management to ensure that  each 
company in the group can continue to operate, and maximize shareholder  
returns by optimizing the balance of debt and equity.  

The capital structure of the combined company is composed of the net  
debt of the combined company ( i .e. borrowings minus cash and cash 
equivalents) and the equity attributable to the owners of the combined 
company (i.e.  share capital , capital reserves, retained earnings and other 
equity i tems).  

Merging companies are not subject to other external capital requir ements.  
The main management of the merged company re -examines the capital  

structure of the group every year, and the content of the review includes 
consideration of the cost of various types of capital  and related risks.  The 
merged company will  balance its  overall capital structure by paying dividends,  
issuing new shares, repurchasing shares,  issuing new debts or repaying old 
debts, etc. , based on the recommendations of the main management.  

 
29.  Financial Instruments  
 

(1)  Fair value information - financial instruments not measured at fair value  
The carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabil it ies not 
measured at fair value approximate their fair values in the opinion of the 
management of the combined company.  

(2)  Fair value information - financial instruments measured at fair value on a 
recurring basis  
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1.  Fair value hierarchy 
December 31, 2022 

  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  total 
Financial assets at fair value 

through profit or loss         
Fund income certificate    $  2,494    $  -    $  -    $  2,494 
 
Financial assets at fair value 

through other 
comprehensive income         

Foreign unlisted (counter) 
stocks    $  -    $  -    $  2,640     $  2,640 
         

December 31, 2021 
  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  total 
Financial assets at fair value 

through profit or loss         
Fund income certificate    $  3,081    $  -    $  -    $  3,081 
 
Financial assets at fair value 

through other 
comprehensive income         

Foreign unlisted (counter) 
stocks    $  -    $  -    $  2,640     $  2,640 

 
There will be no transfer between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value 

measurements in 2022 and 2021.  
 
2.  Evaluation techniques and input values for Level 3 fair  value 

measurement  
The fair values of financial  assets and financial  liabili ties that  have 

standard terms and conditions and are traded in active markets are 
determined by reference to quoted market prices.  If  there is  no market 
price for reference, it shall be estimated by evaluation method. The 
estimates and assumptions used by the merged company in the evaluation 
method are consistent with the information used by market participants as 
estimates and assumptions when pricing financial products.  

Stocks without public quotes  
These consolidated financial statements include unquoted shares 

measured at  fair value. The fair value is based on the market -based 
valuation method - the price-to-earnings ratio method and the stock price -
to-book value ratio method, to evaluate a reasonable fair value. The 
significant unobservable input values are as follows. When t he liquidity 
discount decreases,  the fair value of these investments will increase.  
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(3)  Types of financial instruments  

  
December 
31, 2022  

December 
31, 2021 

Monetary assets     
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss     
Mandatory to be measured at fair value through 

profit or loss    $  2,494    $  3,081 
Financial assets measured at amortized cost (Note 1)  1,171,180   1,333,811 
Financial assets at fair value through other 

comprehensive income     
Equity instrument investment     2,640     2,640 
     
Financial liabilities     
Measured by amortized cost (Note 2)  1,128,263  1,055, 007 

 
Note 1: The balance includes cash and cash equivalents,  financial assets 

measured at amortized cost,  notes receivable, accounts 
receivable,  other receivables and deposits and other financial 
assets measured at amortized cost.  

Note 2: The balance includes short -term loans, short-term bills payable,  
and notes payable,  accounts payable, other payables,  long-term 
loans due within one year, long-term loans and deposits, and 
other financial  liabil ities measured at amortized cost.  

 
(4)  Purpose and policy of financial risk management  

The main financial instruments of the combined company include 
equity investments, accounts receivable, accounts payable a nd borrowings 
and lease l iabilities.  The financial  management department of the merged 
company provides services for each business unit , coordinates operations 
in the domestic and international financial markets, and monitors and 
manages financial risks re lated to the operations of the merged company 
by analyzing the internal risk report of the risk according to the degree 
and breadth of the risk. These risks include market risk (including 
exchange rate risk, interest rate risk and other price risks), credi t risk and 
liquidity risk.  
1.  Market risk  

The main financial  risks borne by the combined company's 
operating activities are the risk of foreign currency exchange rate 
changes (see (1) below) and the risk of interest  rate changes (see (2) 
below).  
(1)  Exchange rate risk  

Several subsidiaries of the Company are engaged in sales and 
purchase transactions denominated in foreign currencies, thus 
exposing the consolidated company to risk of exchange rate 
fluctuations. The management of exchange rate risks of the 
merged company is to use short -term borrowings to avoid 
exchange rate risks.  
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For the carrying amount of monetary assets and monetary 
liabilities denominated in non -functional currency of the 
consolidated company on the balance sheet data (including 
monetary i tems denominated in non-functional currency that have 
been written off in the consolidated financial statements), please 
refer to Note 34 .  
Sensitivity Analysis  

The Merged Company is mainly affected by fluctuations in 
the exchange rates of the US dollar and Renminbi.  

The following table details  the sensitivity analysis of the 
merged company when the exchange rate of the New Taiwan 
dollar (functional currency) against  each relevant foreign 
currency increases and decreases by 1%. 1% is the sensitivity rate 
used when reporting the exchange rate risk to key management 
within the group, and it also represents the management's  
assessment of the range of reasonably possible changes in foreign 
currency in exchange rates.  Sensitivity analysis only includes 
monetary items in foreign currencies in circulation, and the 
conversion at the end of the period is adjusted by 1% of the 
exchange rate change. The positive numbers in the table below 
represent the amount that  will increase the pre -tax net  profit when 
the NT dollar depreciates by 1% relative to the relevant currencies;  
when the NT dollar appreciates by 1% relative to the relevant 
foreign currencies, the impact on the pre -tax net profit will  be 
Negative numbers of the same amount.  

 
  Impact of USD  Impact of RMB 
  2022  2021  2022  2021 

Profit and loss  $ 1,668 (I.)  $2,398 (I.)  $545 (II)  $ 186(II) 
 
(I.)   The receivables and payables denominated in US dollars are 

mainly derived from the consolidated company's  
outstanding circulation on the balance sheet date and no 
cash flow hedging.  

(II)  It  is mainly derived from RMB-denominated receivables and 
payables of the merged company that  are still  in circulation 
on the balance sheet date and have not been hedged against  
cash flow.  

 
(2)  Interest rate risk  

Interest rate exposure risk arises because individuals within 
the merged company borrow funds at both fixed and floating rates.  
The Consolidated Company manages interest rate risk by 
maintaining an appropriate mix of fixed and floating interest rates.  

The carrying amount of the financial assets and financial  
liabilities of the consolidated company subject to interest  rate 
exposure on the balance sheet date is  as follows:  
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December 31, 2022  
December 31, 

2021 

Fair value interest rate risk     
-monetary assets    $ 277,055    $ 328,403 
- Financial liabilities     26,134     76,074 

Cash flow interest rate risk     
-monetary assets     471,610     4 38 , 128 
- Financial liabilities     703,000     411,785 

 
Sensitivity Analysis  

The sensit ivity analysis below is based on the interest rate 
exposure of derivative and non-derivative instruments at the 
balance sheet date.  For floating rate assets and liabilities,  the 
analysis method assumes that  the amount of assets and liabil ities 
outstanding on the balance sheet date is outstanding during the 
reporting period. The rate of change used when reporting interest  
rates internally to key management within the Group is 0.25% for 
an increase or decrease in interest rates,  which also represents 
management 's  assessment of the range of reasonably possible 
changes in interest rates.  

If  the interest rate increases/decreases by 0.25%, and all  
other variables remain unchanged, the combined company’s net  
profit before tax in 2022 and 2021 will decrease/increase NT$578 
thousand and increase/decrease NT$66 thousand, respectively,  
mainly due to the merger The Company’s  variable interest rate 
borrowings decreased.  

 
(3)  Other price risks  

The merged company has equity price risk due to investment 
in equity securities l isted on the counte r.  
Sensitivity Analysis  

The following sensitivity analysis is carried out based on the 
equity price exposure on the balance sheet date.  

If  the equity price increases/decreases by 5%, the pre -tax 
profit  and loss in 2022 and 2021 will increase/decrease by 
NT$125  thousand and NT$154  thousand respectively due to the 
increase/decrease in the fair value of financial  assets measured at 
fair value through profit  and loss. Other comprehensive profit and 
loss before tax in 2022 and 2021 will increase/decrease by 
NT$132  thousand due to the increase/decrease in the fair value of 
financial assets measured at fair value through other 
comprehensive profit  or loss.  

 
2.  Credit risk 

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty defaults in 
contractual obligations and causes financial losses to the Group. As of 
the balance sheet date, the largest credit risk exposure of the merged 
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company that may cause financial losses due to the failure of the 
counterparty to perform its obligations and the financial guarantee 
provided by the merged company mainly comes from:  
(1)  The carrying amount of financial  assets recognized in the 

consolidated balance sheet.  
(2)  The amount of contingent liabilities arising from the financial  

guarantee provided by the merged company.  
The policy adopted by the merged company is to only 

conduct transactions with reputable objects, and to obtain 
sufficient guarantees under necessary circumstances to mitigate 
the risk of financial  loss due to default.  The merged company will  
only trade with companies  rated equivalent to and above 
investment grade. Such information is provided by an independent 
rating agency; if such information is unavailable, the merged 
company will use other publicly available financial information 
and mutual transaction records to rate major customers.  

The credit  risk of the merged company is mainly 
concentrated in the top five customers of the merged company, As 
of December 31, 2021 and 2022, the ratios of total accounts 
receivable from the aforementioned customers were 28% and 33 
%, respectively.  

 
3.  Liquidity risk  

The combined company manages and maintains sufficient cash 
and equivalent cash to support the group's operations and mitigate the 
impact of cash flow fluctuations. The management of the merged 
company supervises the use  of bank financing facilities and ensures 
compliance with the terms of the loan contract .  

Bank borrowings are an important source of liquidity for the 
Merged Company. As of December 31, 20 21 and 2022, please refer to 
the description of the following (2) fi nancing line for the unused 
financing line of the merged company 

(1)  Liquidity and interest rate risk table for non -derivative financial  
liabilities  

The remaining contractual maturity analysis of non -derivative 
financial l iabilities is prepared based on t he undiscounted cash 
flows of financial liabili ties (including principal  and estimated 
interest) based on the earliest  date on which the combined 
company may be required to repay. Therefore, the bank loans that  
the merged company can be required to repay i mmediately are 
serialized in the earl iest period in the table below, regardless of 
the probabili ty of the bank's immediate execution of the right; the 
maturity analysis of other non-derivative financial liabilities is 
prepared according to the agreed repayment date.  
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December 31, 2022 

  

pay on 
demand or 
less than 1 

month  
1 to 3 

months  
3 months 
to 1 year  

1 to 5 
years  

over 5 
years  total 

Non-derivative 
financial 
liabilities 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Notes payable    $  281    $  524    $  -    $  -    $  -    $  805 
accounts payable    234,375     18,766     8,659     -     -    261,800 
Other payables    142,799     14,565     4,663     621     -    162,648 
lease liability     1,545     3,090     14,505     7,320     -     26,460 
loan     40,000     88,340     58,340    123,956    392,364    703,000 
  $419,000  $ 125,285   $ 86,167  $ 131,897  $392,364  $1,154,713 

 
December 31, 2021 

  

pay on 
demand or 
less than 1 

month  
1 to 3 

months  
3 months 
to 1 year  

1 to 5 
years  

over 5 
years  total 

Non-derivative 
financial 
liabilities 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Notes payable 
 

  $    84 
 

  $  605 
 

  $  - 
 
  $      - 

   $ 
- 

 
  $   689 

accounts 
payable 

 
  374,022 

 
   25,021 

 
   10,483 

 
   - 

 
   - 

 
  409,526 

Other payables 
 

  174,594 
 

   23,199 
 

   5,158 
 

   36 
 
   - 

 
  202,987 

lease liability     2,676     5,326     14,477     24,500     -     46,979 
loan   46,160  187,821   201,441   6,363    -   441,785 

 
 

 $ 597,536 
 
 $ 241,972 

 
 $ 231,559 

 
  $ 30,899 

 
  $  - 

 
 $1,101,966 

 
(2)  Financing amount  

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
Unsecured Bank Borrowing 

Facility  
(reviewed annually)     

- Amount used    $      40,000    $     168,246 
- Unused amount     510,000     281,500 

    $  550,000    $  449,746 
Guaranteed bank loan line  

(extendable upon mutual 
agreement)     

- Amount used    $     842,000    $     290,500 
- Unused amount     458,500     395,000 

    $  1,300,500    $  685,500 
 
30.  Related party transactions  

Transactions, account balances, gains and losses between the Company 
and its  subsidiaries (related persons of the Company) are all  eliminated upon 
consolidation, so they are not disclosed in this note.  Except as disclosed in 
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other notes,  the transactions between the merged company and other related 
parties are as follows:  

(1)  The name of the related party and its  relationship  

Related person name  
Relationship with Merged 
Company 

Ever-Precise recycle company  Substantial related person 
CHEN, KUO-CHIN  Substantial related person 
CHEN, YAN-HONG  Substantial related person 

 
(2)  Operating income 

Account items  
Related person 

name  2022  2021 
sales revenue  Ever-Precise 

recycle company 
   $  9,466    $  35,142 

 
The sales price of the merged company to related parties is 

comparable to that  of general customers.  
(3)  Receivables from related parties (excluding loans to related parties)  

Account items  
Related person 

name  
December 31, 

2022  
December 31, 

2021 
Accounts receivable - 

related parties 
 Ever-Precise 

recycle 
company 

   $  4,605    $  9,219 

 
There is no guarantee for the outstandi ng receivables from related 

parties.  In 2022 and 2021, the amount receivable from related parties will  
be NT$65 thousand and NT$67 thousand respectively.  

(4)  Lease agreement  
Related person 

name  Subject matter  
Rent payment 

method  2022  2021 
CHEN,KUO-

CHIN 
 No. 11, Lane 195, 

Yongfeng Road, 
Tucheng District, 
New Taipei City 

 Pay NT$5 thousand 
per month 

   $  60    $  60 

CHEN, YAN-
HONG 

 2nd Floor, No. 185, 
Zhongxiao West 
Road, Fuchangli, 
Luzhu District, 
Taoyuan City 

 Pay NT$6 thousand 
per month 

   $  72    $  72 

 
(5)  Remuneration of main management  

  2022  2021 
short-term employee benefits    $  19,765    $  20,727 
Post-employment benefits     498     203 
    $  20,263    $  20,930 

 
Directors  and other key management personnel is determined by the 

remuneration committee in accordance with individual performance and 
market trends.  
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31.  Assets pledged 
The following assets of the merged company have been provided as 

collateral  for financing loans, collateral  for purchasing raw materials, and 
deposits:  

  December 31, 2022  
December 31, 

2021 
Pledged certificate of deposit ( financial assets 

measured at cost after amortization - 
current) 

 

  $  19,204    $  23,336 
Bank deposits - allowance account ( financial 

assets carried at amortized cost - current ) 
 

   -     6,001 
Bank deposits - allowance account ( financial 

assets carried at amortized cost - non-
current ) 

 

   -     2,001  
Pledged certificate of deposit ( financial assets 

measured at cost after amortization - non-
current ) 

 

   23,791     23,454 
own land     1,129,047     523,247 
Housing and construction - net     40,216     50,758 
Machinery and equipment - net     12,499     13,622 
Other equipment - net     12,565     15,691 
    $  1,237,322    $  658,110  

 
32.  Significant contingent liabilities and un recognized contractual 

commitments  
In addit ion to those mentioned in other notes, the major commitments and 

contingencies of the merged company on the balance sheet date are as follows:  
(1) The merged company entrusted the bank to endorse and guarantee NT$ 700 

thousand for the import and export business and the purchase from the 
manufacturer.  

(2) The consolidated company issued a deposit  guarantee note to the 
manufacturer for the purchase of raw materials, amounting to NT$19,663 
thousand.  

(3) The combined company's deposit and outbound securities issued to the bank 
for borrowing and export  bills amounted to NT$1,345,770 thousand and 
US$4,000 thousand.  

(4) The contract  between the merged company and the manufacturer promises 
to purchase machinery and equipment .  The total  contract price is  
NT$60,532 thousand. As of December 31, 2022, NT$34,224 thousand has 
been paid (account advance payment for equipment), and NT$26,308 
thousand remains to be paid.  
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33.  Other matters  

The merged company has assessed the econom ic impact of the novel  
coronavirus pneumonia epidemic, but as of the date of the release of this 
consolidated financial report,  there has been no significant impact on the 
merged company. The Merged Company will continue to observe the relevant 
outbreak and assess i ts impact.  

 
34.  Information on Foreign Currency Assets and Liabilities with Significant 

Impact 
The following information is summarized and expressed in terms of 

foreign currencies other than the individual functional currencies of the 
consolidated companies, and the disclosed exchange rates refer to the 
exchange rates converted from these foreign currencies to the functional 
currencies. The foreign currency financial  assets and liabili ties with 
significant impact are as follows:  

 
December 31, 2022 

  
Foreign 
currency  Exchange rate  

Carrying 
amount 

Foreign currency assets       
Monetary item       
USD    $  5,383  30.71 (USD: TWD)    $  165,325 
USD     152  6.967 (USD: RMB)     4,667 
RMB     12,365  4.408 (RMB: NTD)     54,503 
        $  224,495 
non-monetary items       
Affiliated enterprises and 

joint ventures using the 
equity method       

USD    $  630  30.71 (USD: TWD)    $  28,074 
Financial assets measured 

at cost       
MYR     238  6.70 (MYR: TWD)    $  2,640 

       
foreign currency liabilities       
monetary item       
USD     105  30.71 (USD: TWD)    $  3,235 
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December 31, 2021 

  
Foreign 
currency  Exchange rate  

Carrying 
amount 

Foreign currency 
assets       
Monetary item       
USD    $  8,683   27.68  (USD: TWD)    $   240,351 
USD     90   6.3 8  (USD:RMB)     2,481 
RMB     4,287   4.344  (RMB: NTD)     18,622 
        $  261,454 
non-monetary 
items       
Affiliated 

enterprises 
and joint 
ventures using 
the equity 
method       

USD     630   27.68  (USD: TWD)    $  27,802 
Financial assets 

measured at 
cost 
       

MYR     238   6.36  (MYR: TWD)    $  2,640 
 
       
Foreign currency 
liabilities       
Monetary item       
USD     109   27.68  (USD: TWD)    $  3,019 

 
The realized and unrealized foreign currency exchange gains and 

losses of the consolidated company in 2022 and 2021 are NT$29,771  
thousand and NT$(5,466) thousand respectively. Due to the variety of 
foreign currency transactions and individual functional currencie s of the 
group, i t  is not possible to calculate. Do not disclose exchange gains and 
losses for foreign currencies.  
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35.  Matters disclosed in the notes  
(1) Major transactions and (2) Relevant information on reinvested businesses:  

Serial 
number Project Illustrate 

1 Funds are loaned to others. None 
2 Endorsement for others. None 

3 
Securities held at the end of the period. (excluding investment 

subsidiaries, affiliated enterprises and joint venture 
interests) 

Schedule 1 

4 
Accumulated buying or selling of the same securities 

amounted to NT$300 million or more than 20% of the paid-
in capital. 

None 

5 The amount of real estate acquired is NT$300 million or more 
than 20% of the paid-in capital. Schedule 2 

6 The amount of disposing of real estate is NT$300 million or 
more than 20% of the paid-in capital. None 

7 
The amount of goods purchased and sold with related parties 

reaches NT$100 million or more than 20% of the paid-in 
capital. 

None 

8 Receivables from related parties amount to NT$100 million or 
more than 20% of the paid-in capital. None 

9 Engage in derivative transactions. None 

10 
Others: the business relationship between the parent company 

and the subsidiaries, and the status and amount of important 
transactions. 

Schedule 6 

11 Invested company information Schedule 3 
 

(3)  Mainland investment information:  

Serial 
number Project Illustrate 

1 

The name of the mainland invested company, main business 
items, paid-in capital, investment method, capital 
remittance, shareholding ratio, investment profit and loss, 
investment book amount at the end of the period, 
repatriated investment profit and loss, and investment quota 
in the mainland. 

Schedule 4 

2 

The following major transactions, prices, payment terms, and 
unrealized gains and losses with mainland investee 
companies directly or indirectly via third regions: 

 

(1)  The purchase amount and percentage and the ending 
balance and percentage of related payables. None 

(2)  The amount and percentage of sales and the closing 
balance and percentage of related receivables. Schedule 5 

(3)  The amount of the property transaction and the resulting 
profit or loss. None 

(4)  Ending balance of bill endorsement guarantee or 
provision of collateral and its purpose. None 

- 61 -



 

 

Serial 
number Project Illustrate 

(5)  The maximum balance of financing, the balance at the 
end of the period, the interest rate range and the total 
amount of interest for the current period. 

None 

(6)  Other transactions that have a significant impact on the 
current profit or loss or financial status, such as the 
provision or receipt of labor services, etc. 

None 

 
(4) Major shareholder information: Please refer to Attachment VII for the 

name, shareholding amount and proportion of the shareholders whose 
shareholding ratio is  more than 5 %.  

 
36.  Department information  
 

(1)  Department revenue and operating results  
The chief operating decision maker regards the sales units of 

electronic circuit etching chemicals and copper compounds in each region 
as individual operating departments, but when preparing financial reports,  
the merged company considers the following factors and considers these 
operating departments as a single operating department:  
 1.  These operating divisions have similar long -term sales margins;  
 2.  The nature and process of the product are similar.   

(2)  Income from main products and services  
The income analysis of the consolidated company's main products and 

services is  as follows:  
  2022  2021 
Specialty chemicals    $  402,064    $447,026 
Recycled products (containing 
copper salts) 

    2,888,309     3,250,599 

Other     430,733     506,325 
    $ 3,721,106    $ 4,203,950 

 
(3)  Regional information 

The combined company mainly operates in two regions - Taiwan and 
China.  

The consolidated company's income from external customers is listed 
as follows:  

 
  Revenue from external customers  Non-current assets  
  2022  2021  December 31, 2022  December 31, 

2021 
 

Taiwan  
  $  609,143 

   $ 
626,561 

   $ 1,332,396    $  758,794  

Asia     1,875,054     2,106,012     128,673     143,530  
Oceania     1,195,221     1,370,914     -     -  
America     38,627     81,449     -     -  
Africa     3,061     19,014     -     -  
    $ 3,721,106    $ 4,203,950   $  1,461,069    $  902,324  
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Non-current assets do not include assets classified as financial assets, 

affiliates using the  equity method and deferred tax assets.  
 

 (4)  Main customer information  
The income from a single customer accounts for more than 10% of the 

total  income of the consolidated company as follows:  
  2022  2021 

Customer D    $  947,959    $  960,358 
Customer A12     677,068     756, 699 
    $ 1,625,027    $ 1,717,057  
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AMIA CO., LTD. 
INFORMATION OF MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS 

DECEMBER 31, 2022 
Schedule 7 
 

Name of Major Shareholder 
Shares 

Number of Shares Percentage of Ownership (%) 

CHEN,YEN-HENG    14,767,000    20.94 % 

CHEN,GUO-TANG    6,015,000    8.52 % 

CDIB Capital Group    6,000,000    8.50 % 

CHEN,KUO-CHIN    6,000,000    8.50 % 

CHEN,GUO-FA    5,000,000    7.09 % 

CHEN,CHIU-HUNG    5,000,000    7.09 % 

CHEN,GUO-SHAN    4,008,000     5.68 % 

CHEN,MIN-HSIUNG    4,001,000    5.67 % 
 
Note  1:   The main shareholder  informat ion in this  tab le  is  ca lcula ted by CHEP based on the 

last  business day at  the end of the quarter,  and the shareholders hold more than 5% 
of  the co mmon shares and spec ial  share s  o f the  Company that  have completed  de l ivery 
wi thout physical  regis trat ion ( inc luding treasury shares)  mater ial .  The share cap ital  
recorded in the Company's  individual  f inancia l  report  and the ac tua l  number  of shares 
delivered wi thout phys ica l  regis tra t io n may be di fferent  or  di ffe rent  due to  the  
di ffe rent  basis o f preparat ion and calcula t ion.  

Note  2:   I f  the above -mentioned information i s  tha t  the  shareholder  t ransfers  the  hold ings  to  
the trust ,  i t  i s  d isclosed by the  t rus tor 's  ind ividual  t rust  account  op ened by the  t rus tee .  
As for  insider  equi ty declarat ions  for  shareholders  who hold  more than 10% of  the 
shares in accordance wi th  the  Securi t ies  and Exchange Act ,  their  sharehold ing 
includes their  own shares p lus the shares they have de livered to  the  trust  and have  
the r ight  to  use  the  trust  property,  e tc .  For  information on insider  equi ty declarat ions,  
please re fer  to  public  informat ion Observatory.  
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